
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL
RHONDDA CYNON TAF

COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

GWŶS I GYFARFOD PWYLLGOR

C Hanagan
Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu 
Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Rhondda Cynon Taf
Y Pafiliynau
Parc Hen Lofa'r Cambrian
Cwm Clydach, CF40 2XX

Dolen gyswllt: Jess Daniel - Uned Busnes y Cyngor - Gwasanaethau Llywodraethol  (01443 
424110) 

Bydd cyfarfod o'r  Pwyllgor Cynllunio a Datblygu yn cael ei gynnal yn Siambr y Cyngor, 
Y Pafiliynau, Parc Hen Lofa'r Cambrian, Cwm Clydach, Tonypandy, CF40 2XX 
ar DYDD IAU, 6ED CHWEFROR, 2020 am 5.00 PM.

MAE MODD I AELODAU NAD YDYN NHW’N AELODAU O’R PWYLLGOR AC AELODAU 
O'R CYHOEDD OFYN I ANNERCH Y PWYLLGOR YN YSTOD Y CYFARFOD SY'N 
YMWNEUD Â'R MATER SYDD WEDI'I NODI. RYDYN NI'N GOFYN EICH BOD CHI'N RHOI 
GWYBOD AM EICH BWRIAD I SIARAD DRWY E-BOSTIO 
GWASANAETHAUCYNLLUNIO@RCTCBC.GOV.UK ERBYN 5PM AR DYDD MAWRTH, 4 
CHWEFROR 2020, GAN NODI A FYDDWCH CHI'N SIARAD YN GYMRAEG NEU'N 
SAESNEG. 

MAE'N BOSIB BYDD TREFN YR AGENDA'N NEWID ER MWYN HWYLUSO BUSNES Y 
PWYLLGOR.

AGENDA Tudalennau

1. DATGAN BUDDIANT 
Derbyn datganiadau o fuddiannau personol gan Aelodau, yn unol â 
gofynion y Cod Ymddygiad.

Nodwch:
1. Mae gofyn i Aelodau ddatgan rhif a phwnc yr eitem mae eu 

buddiant yn ymwneud ag ef a mynegi natur y buddiant personol 
hwnnw; a

2. Lle bo Aelodau'n ymneilltuo o'r cyfarfod o ganlyniad i ddatgelu 
buddiant sy'n rhagfarnu, mae rhaid iddyn nhw roi gwybod i'r 
Cadeirydd pan fyddan nhw'n gadael.

mailto:Planningservices@rhondda-cynon-taff.gov.uk


2. DEDDF HAWLIAU DYNOL 1998 A PHENDERFYNIADAU RHEOLI 
DATBLYGU 
Nodi y dylai Aelodau o'r Pwyllgor, wrth benderfynu materion rheoli 
datblygu ger eu bron, roi sylw i'r Cynllun Datblygu ac, i'r graddau y bo 
hynny yn berthnasol, i unrhyw ystyriaethau perthnasol eraill. Rhaid i 
Aelodau, wrth ddod i benderfyniadau, sicrhau nad ydyn nhw'n 
gweithredu mewn modd sy'n anghyson â'r Confensiwn Ewropeaidd ar 
Hawliau Dynol fel y'i hymgorfforwyd mewn deddfwriaeth gan Ddeddf 
Hawliau Dynol 1998.

3. DEDDF LLESIANT CENEDLAETHAU’R DYFODOL (CYMRU) 2015 
Nodi bod Deddf Llesiant Cenedlaethau’r Dyfodol (Cymru) 2015 yn 
gosod dyletswydd ar gyrff cyhoeddus i gynnal datblygiadau cynaliadwy 
yn unol â'r egwyddor datblygu cynaliadwy, ac i weithredu mewn modd 
sy'n anelu at sicrhau y caiff anghenion y presennol eu diwallu heb 
amharu ar allu cenedlaethau'r dyfodol i ddiwallu eu hanghenion 
hwythau.

4. COFNODION 
Cadarnhau cofnodion o gyfarfod y Pwyllgor Cynllunio a Datblygu a 
gynhaliwyd ar 19 Rhagfyr, 2019. 

5 - 8
CEISIADAU A ARGYMHELLIR AR GYFER EU CYMERADWYO GAN Y 
CYFARWYDDWR MATERION FFYNIANT A DATBLYGU 

5. RHIF Y CAIS: 15/0666 
Estyniad gorllewinol i'r chwarel bresennol, i gynnwys echdynnu 10 
miliwn tunnell ychwanegol o dywodfaen pennant yn raddol, adeiladu 
byndiau sgrinio, gwaith cysylltiedig, a chydgrynhoi'r holl ganiatadau 
cynllunio mwynau blaenorol yn Chwarel Craig yr Hesg, gan gynnwys 
estyn y dyddiad gorffen ar gyfer chwarela a chynllun adfer cyffredinol 
(gwybodaeth ychwanegol wedi'i nodi yn yr adroddiad "Materion Lles ac 
Iechyd yr Amgylchedd") Chwarel Craig yr Hesg, Heol Berw, Pontypridd

9 - 56
ADRODDIAD ER GWYBODAETH 

6. GWYBODAETH I AELODAU SY'N YMWNEUD Â'R CAMAU 
GWEITHREDU WEDI'U CYMRYD O DAN BWERAU DIRPRWYEDIG 
Rhoi gwybod i Aelodau am y canlynol, ar gyfer y cyfnod 18/01/2020 a 
24/01/2020.

Penderfyniadau Cynllunio a Gorfodi – Apeliadau a Dderbyniwyd. 
Penderfyniadau Dirprwyedig – Ceisiadau wedi'u cymeradwyo a'u 



gwrthod gyda rhesymau.
Trosolwg o Achosion Gorfodi.
Phenderfyniadau Gorfodi Dirprwyedig.

57 - 72
7. MATERION BRYS 

Trafod unrhyw faterion sydd, yn ôl doethineb y Cadeirydd, yn rhai brys 
yng ngoleuni amgylchiadau arbennig.

Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu

Cylchrediad:-

Aelodau o’r Pwyllgor Cynllunio a Datblygu:

Cadeirydd ac Is-gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Materion Rheoli Datblygu
(Y Cynghorydd S Rees a Y Cynghorydd G Caple)

Y Cynghorydd J Bonetto, Y Cynghorydd P Jarman, Y Cynghorydd D Grehan, 
Y Cynghorydd G Hughes, Y Cynghorydd  J Williams, Y Cynghorydd S Powell, 
Y Cynghorydd W Owen, Y Cynghorydd R Yeo ac Y Cynghorydd D Williams

Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu
Cyfarwyddwr Materion Ffyniant a Datblygu
Pennaeth Datblygu Mawr a Buddsoddi
Pennaeth Cynllunio
Rheolwr Datblygu Priffyrdd a Mabwysiadu Priffyrdd
Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol



tudalen wag



 

 

 
PWYLLGOR CABINET CYNGOR RHONDDA CYNON TAF 

 PWYLLGOR CYNLLUNIO A DATBLYGU 
Cofnodion o gyfarfod y Pwyllgor Cynllunio a Datblygu a gynhaliwyd   Dydd Iau, 19 Rhagfyr 2019 

am 5.00 pm ym Siambr y Cyngor, Y Pafiliynau, Parc Hen Lofa'r Cambrian, Cwm Clydach, 
Tonypandy, CF40 2XX. 

 
 

Y Cynghorwyr Bwrdeistref Sirol - Pwyllgor Cynllunio a Datblygu Aelodau oedd yn 
bresennol:-:- 

 
Y Cynghorydd S Rees (Cadeirydd) 

 
Y Cynghorydd G Caple Y Cynghorydd P Jarman 

Y Cynghorydd D Grehan Y Cynghorydd G Hughes 
Y Cynghorydd  J Williams Y Cynghorydd S Powell 

Y Cynghorydd R Yeo Y Cynghorydd D Williams 
 

Swyddogion oedd yn bresennol 
 

Mr C Jones, Pennaeth Datblygu Mawr a Buddsoddi 
Mr S Zeinali, Rheolwr Datblygu Priffyrdd a Mabwysiadu Priffyrdd 

Mr S Humphreys, Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol 
 

Y Cynghorwyr Bwrdeistref Sirol eraill oedd yn bresennol 
 

Y Cynghorydd R Bevan Y Cynghorydd G Thomas 
 

159   YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB  
 

 

 Daeth ymddiheuriadau am golli'r cyfarfod oddi wrth Gynghorwyr y Fwrdeistref 
Sirol J. Bonetto a W. Owen.  
 

 

160   DATGAN BUDDIANT  
 

 

 Yn unol â Chod Ymddygiad y Cyngor, doedd dim datganiadau o fuddiant ynglŷn 
â'r agenda. 
 

 

161   DEDDF HAWLIAU DYNOL 1998 A PHENDERFYNIADAU RHEOLI 
DATBLYGU  
 

 

 PENDERFYNWYD nodi y dylai Aelodau o'r Pwyllgor, wrth benderfynu ar 
faterion rheoli datblygu ger eu bron, roi sylw i'r Cynllun Datblygu ac, i'r graddau 
y bo hynny yn berthnasol, i unrhyw ystyriaethau perthnasol eraill. Rhaid i 
Aelodau, wrth ddod i benderfyniadau, sicrhau nad ydyn nhw'n gweithredu 
mewn modd sy'n anghyson â'r Confensiwn Ewropeaidd ar Hawliau Dynol fel y'i 
hymgorfforwyd mewn deddfwriaeth gan Ddeddf Hawliau Dynol 1998. 
 

 

162   DEDDF LLESIANT CENEDLAETHAU’R DYFODOL (CYMRU) 2015  
 

 

 PENDERFYNWYD nodi bod Deddf Llesiant Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol (Cymru) 
2015 yn gosod dyletswydd ar gyrff cyhoeddus i gynnal datblygiadau cynaliadwy 
yn unol â'r egwyddor datblygu cynaliadwy, ac i weithredu mewn modd sy'n 

 

Tudalen 5

Agendwm 4



 

anelu at sicrhau y caiff anghenion y presennol eu diwallu heb amharu ar allu 
cenedlaethau'r dyfodol i ddiwallu eu hanghenion nhw. 
 

163   Cofnodion  
 

 

 PENDERFYNWYD cadarnhau'r cofnodion o gyfarfod y Pwyllgor Cynllunio a 
Datblygu a gynhaliwyd ar 7 Tachwedd, 2019 yn rhai cywir.   
 

 

164   NEWID I DREFN YR AGENDA  
 

 

 Cytunodd y Pwyllgor y byddai'r agenda yn cael ei hystyried mewn trefn wahanol 
yn unol â'r manylion yn y cofnodion isod. 
 

 

165   RHIF Y CAIS: 19/1168  
 

 

 Ffenestri 'dormer' blaen a chefn ac estyniad unllawr, 25 Underhill Drive, 
Ton-teg, Pontypridd. 
 
Yn unol â'r gweithdrefnau a gafodd eu mabwysiadu, derbyniodd y Pwyllgor Mr M 
Evans (Gwrthwynebydd). Cafodd e bum munud i annerch yr Aelodau ynglŷn â'r 
cynnig uchod. 
 
Amlinellodd y Pennaeth Datblygu Mawr a Buddsoddi gynnwys llythyr 'hwyr' a 
ddaeth i law gan yr Aelod Lleol, Cynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol L. Hooper, yn 
gwrthwynebu'r datblygiad arfaethedig.  
 
Cyflwynodd y Pennaeth Datblygu Mawr a Buddsoddi y cais i'r Pwyllgor ac yn 
dilyn trafodaeth, roedd yr Aelodau o'r farn i wrthod y cais yn groes i argymhelliad 
y Cyfarwyddwr, Ffyniant a Datblygu, oherwydd yr effaith ormesol y byddai'r 
cynllun 'dormer' arfaethedig yn ei gael ar yr eiddo cyfagos. O ganlyniad i hynny, 
caiff y mater ei ohirio tan y cyfarfod priodol nesaf o'r Pwyllgor Cynllunio a 
Datblygu fel bod modd derbyn adroddiad gan y Cyfarwyddwr Materion Ffyniant a 
Datblygu, a gaiff ei lunio drwy ymgynghori â Chyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau 
Cyfreithiol yn ôl yr angen. Bydd yr adroddiad yn tynnu sylw at y cryfderau a'r 
gwendidau posibl sydd ynghlwm â gwneud penderfyniad yn groes i argymhelliad 
swyddog, neu unrhyw reswm arfaethedig neu reswm cynllunio dros wneud 
penderfyniad o'r fath. Caiff yr adroddiad yma ei ystyried cyn dod i benderfyniad 
ar y mater. 
 
(Nodwch: Doedd cynnig i ohirio trafod y cais i ganiatáu i'r ymgeisydd ailystyried 
maint y cynllun 'dormer' ddim yn llwyddiannus) 
 

 

166   RHIF Y CAIS: 19/1084  
 

 

 Annedd arfaethedig, tir ger 2 Chepstow Road, Cwm-parc, Treorci.  
 
Cyflwynodd y Pennaeth Datblygu Mawr a Buddsoddi y cais uchod i'r Pwyllgor. 
Ar ôl trafod y cynnig, PENDERFYNODD yr Aelodau gymeradwyo'r cais yn unol 
ag argymhelliad y Cyfarwyddwr Materion Ffyniant a Datblygu.  
 

 

167   RHIF Y CAIS: 19/1192  
 

 

 Codi tri chwrs gwifren wib (4 llinell), gosod sylfaen galed, creu heolydd 
mynediad mewnol a llwybrau i gerddwyr, lleoliad dros dro cabanau a 

 

Tudalen 6



 

defnyddio tir ar gyfer parcio ceir, tir ar Fynydd y Rhigos a safle hen Lofa'r 
Tŵr, Heol y Rhigos, Hirwaun, Aberdâr. 
 
Siaradodd yr Aelod Lleol, nad yw'n Aelod o'r Pwyllgor, Cynghorydd y 
Fwrdeistref Sirol G. Thomas am y cais gan gynnig ei gefnogaeth i'r datblygiad 
arfaethedig.  
 
Amlinellodd y Pennaeth Datblygu Mawr a Buddsoddi gynnwys dau lythyr 'hwyr' a 
dderbyniwyd; roedd y cyntaf gan breswylydd lleol yn gwrthwynebu'r cynnig a'r ail 
yn dod oddi wrth sefydliad Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru, a oedd yn manylu ar 
bryderon sylweddol mewn perthynas â'r cynnig uchod ond a gynigiodd nifer o 
Amodau i leddfu'r pryderon hynny.  
 
Cyflwynodd y Pennaeth Datblygu Mawr a Buddsoddi y cais i'r Pwyllgor gan 
argymell i gael gwared ar Amodau 7 a 5, yr oedd yr ymgeisydd wedi rhoi sylw 
iddyn nhw, pe bai'r Aelodau'n bwriadu cymeradwyo'r cais.  
 
Dywedodd y Pennaeth Datblygu a Buddsoddi Mawr y byddai modd cychwyn, 
yn ôl yr wybodaeth ddiweddaraf, ar y safle nawr yng nghanol mis Chwefror (ac 
nid yng nghanol mis Ionawr fel y soniwyd yn flaenorol) er mwyn osgoi cael 
effaith ar y safleoedd nythu ar gyfer yr Hebog Tramor. Yng ngoleuni'r mis 
ychwanegol, roedd yr ymgeisydd yn ceisio cwrdd â gofynion rhai o'r amodau a 
gafodd eu hargymell cyn cyhoeddi'r caniatâd, er mwyn gallu cychwyn. 
 
Gofynnodd y Pennaeth Datblygu Mawr a Buddsoddi am gymeradwyaeth y 
Pwyllgor i'r Pennaeth Cynllunio, o dan awdurdod dirprwyedig, i barhau i wneud 
unrhyw fân ddiwygiadau i Amodau (gan gynnwys eu dileu pe bai'r ymgeisydd 
gyflwyno'r manylion gofynnol cyn i'r cysyniad) os bydd angen. Y gobaith hefyd 
oedd y byddai modd dod i gytundeb â Chyfoeth Naturiol Cymru, ond teimlwyd 
bod digon o wybodaeth eisoes wedi'i chyflwyno ac nad oedd angen cytundeb â 
CNC er mwyn cyhoeddi'r caniatâd.  
 
Yn dilyn trafodaeth hir, PENDERFYNODD y Pwyllgor i gymeradwyo'r cais yn 
unol ag argymhelliad y Cyfarwyddwr Materion Ffyniant a Datblygu yn amodol 
ar ddileu manylion ynglŷn â'r Amodau uchod; a rhoi awdurdod i'r Pennaeth 
Cynllunio wneud unrhyw fân ddiwygiadau i Amodau lle bo angen. 
 

168   GWYBODAETH I AELODAU SY'N YMWNEUD Â'R CAMAU GWEITHREDU 
WEDI'U CYMRYD O DAN BWERAU DIRPRWYEDIG  
 

 

 PENDERFYNODD yr Aelodau dderbyn adroddiad y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth – 
Materion Cynllunio mewn perthynas â'r Penderfyniadau Apeliadau Cynllunio a 
Gorfodi a ddaeth i law, Cymeradwyaethau Penderfyniadau a Gwrthodiadau 
Dirprwyedig gyda rhesymau, Trosolwg o Achosion Gorfodi a Phenderfyniadau 
Gorfodi Dirprwyedig ar gyfer y cyfnod 25 Tachwedd, 2019 a 6 Rhagfyr, 2019. 
 

 

 
 

Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 6.00 pm Y Cynghorydd S Rees 
Cadeirydd. 

Tudalen 7



 

 

Tudalen 8



PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

6 FEBRUARY 2020

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR PROSPERITY AND DEVELOPMENT

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

Members are asked to determine the planning application outlined below:

APPLICATION NO: 15/0666/10              
APPLICANT:  Hanson UK
DEVELOPMENT: Western extension to existing quarry to include the 

phased extraction of an additional 10 million tonnes of 
pennant sandstone, construction of screening bunds, 
associated works and operations, and consolidation of all 
previous mineral planning permissions at Craig Yr Hesg 
Quarry, including an extension of the end date for 
quarrying and an overall restoration scheme (additional 
information submitted "Wellbeing and Environmental 
Health Issues" report)

LOCATION: CRAIG YR HESG QUARRY, BERW ROAD, 
PONTYPRIDD, CF37 3BG

DATE REGISTERED: 15/05/2015
ELECTORAL DIVISION: Glyncoch

RECOMMENDATION:  Approve, subject to a S.106 Agreement

REASONS: The site is within an area identified as a “Preferred Area of Known 
Mineral Resource” in the adopted Local Development Plan. There is an 
expectation under the terms of the Regional Technical Statement for Aggregates 
for the South Wales Area (1st Review) that Rhondda Cynon Taf will secure 
additional reserves for aggregate production in order to meet the requirement 
to have a minimum of 10 years supply throughout the LDP period. 

It is considered that the Area of Preferred Known Mineral Resource this 
application sits within is the only realistic prospect of providing these reserves 
and therefore extending the quarry is considered acceptable in principle. It is 
also noted that stone extracted from Craig Yr Hesg has a very high skid 
resistance of UK importance and is used in specialist road surfaces projects 
due to this. 

In terms of the details of this application, advice given in Minerals Technical 
Advice Note 1 gives a standard of a 200 metre separation distance between the 
operational area of a quarry and sensitive surrounding land uses, for drawing 
buffer zones around quarries. Such a buffer zone does not exist around Craig 

Tudalen 9

Agendwm 5



Yr Hesg Quarry for this particular purpose, nevertheless this 200 metres can be 
seen as a key material consideration in the determination of this application. 

It is acknowledged that the proposed quarry extension when measured from the 
inner edge of the proposed screening land form to be created does fall within 
200 metres of residential properties and their curtilages and within 200 metres 
of the playing fields of a nearby primary school. However, the impacts in respect 
of blasting, air quality, operational noise and visual impact have been assessed 
and it is considered that they can be mitigated and managed to a satisfactory 
level to grant planning permission for the extension, subject to conditions and 
a Section 106 Agreement. 

REASON APPLICATION REPORTED TO COMMITTEE

The application proposal is for a form and scale of development which in the opinion 
of the Director of Prosperity and Development warrants the consideration of the 
Planning & Development Committee. Furthermore, the application is subject to 
Environmental Assessment; three or more objections have been received in respect 
of the application; and, the application site includes land owned by the Council where 
it is considered the interest is more than of a minor nature.  

APPLICATION DETAILS

This application seeks full planning permission for an extension to the west of the 
existing quarry and the consolidation of the current planning permissions for mineral 
extraction at the quarry into a single permission that covers the quarrying, restoration 
and ancillary operations on the whole site. 

Currently, the site operates under four planning permissions for mineral extraction, 
which date between 1949 and 1993. These are listed in the “Planning History” below. 

The conditions under all four applications were reviewed under a Review of Minerals 
Permission (ROMP) application (reference 08/1380/10), in accordance with the 
requirements of the Environment Act 1995, in order to bring the operating conditions 
up to date and in line with modern standards. A schedule of 49 conditions was issued 
and the existing controls need to be considered as part of the proposed planning 
application. If planning permission is granted for the proposed extension/consolidation 
the existing planning permissions would effectively be superseded and the whole site 
would be subject to the requirement to apply for a ROMP in 15 years, as currently set 
out under the terms of Schedule 14 of the Environment Act 1995. Previous planning 
permissions could be extinguished under the terms of a Section 106 Agreement.

This planning application does not include the access as this is covered by a separate 
planning permission (reference 13/1039/10).

The proposal includes the following key elements:

 The construction of a landscaped screening land form around the eastern and 
northern boundaries of the extension area, to a maximum height of 5 metres above 

Tudalen 10



the existing ground level, to be completed prior to the commencement of mineral 
extraction within the extension area;

The construction of a soil screen bund along the western boundary of the quarry, to 
be completed prior to the commencement of mineral extraction;

The continuation of extraction within the currently permitted area together with the 
phased extraction of some 10 million tonnes of Pennant Sandstone from the extension 
area;

The use of the existing processing plant, ancillary plant and infrastructure to process 
the remaining reserves within the existing site and the reserves from the extension 
area; 

An overall restoration scheme for the existing quarry and extension area designed to 
facilitate landscape, amenity and nature conservation after uses.

Some 220m of new traditional stone walling is also proposed around the northern site 
perimeter to link existing stone walls. As well as the above, the proposal involves the 
erection of 2.4m high steel palisade fencing around the site, to secure the site and to 
link with the existing palisade fencing around the current quarry boundary. In addition, 
a 150mm ductile iron water main, which currently passes through the middle of the 
extension area in a north east to south west direction, will need to be diverted to a new 
route located to the north of the proposed extraction area and screening land form. 
The new pipe would likely be required to be polyethylene rather than iron and would 
be laid in a trench.

The proposed extension area would involve quarrying operations within three phases 
with faces of between 11m and 15m high to a maximum depth of 100 metres A.O.D. 

The landscaped screening land form and the western screening bund will be 
constructed from soils and overburden materials obtained from Phase 1 of the 
extension and from surplus fine aggregates currently stored within the existing quarry 
void. The screening landform will require approximately 51,000 m³ of material and will 
be formed with a core of sandstone fines (approx. 31,000 m³). Overburden of 
thicknesses between 0.3m and 1.6 m have been established in the extension area, 
based on trial pit excavations, which will provide a further 12,000m³ of material. The 
remaining material will be soils to dress the surface and facilitate vegetation growth. 
The screening landform will be constructed in a maximum of 8 weeks and will be tree 
seeded with seeds of local provenance. The western bund will be 2m in height formed 
of some 1200m³ of overburden and 800m³ of soils and will be seeded to grass or be 
allowed to naturally recolonise.

Prior to quarrying operations within Phases 2 and 3, soils and overburden would be 
stripped in accordance with the proposed phasing of the works and the material used 
in progressive restoration of worked out areas within the quarry.

The proposed three phases of quarrying would involve the following details:

Phase 1 – Development of the existing quarry benches at 154, 168 and 184 metre 
A.O.D. into the extension area

Tudalen 11



Phase 2 – Continued development with the creation of bench levels at 128, 139, 154, 
161 and 176m A.O.D; and 

Phase 3 – Excavation of all the benches to a final depth of 100m A.O.D.

The application details show that the sandstone resource within the extension area 
has at least the same quality and physical properties as that extracted from the existing 
quarry. The quarry is located stratigraphically within the Brithdir Beds of the Lower 
Pennant Measures. These are predominantly thickly bedded sandstones which 
produce high quality aggregate for road construction due to their skid resistant 
properties and durability. The application states that there were 5.7 million tonnes of 
rock remaining within the existing quarry on 1st January 2015 and the extension area 
proposes an additional 10 million tonnes.  However, only about 1.7 million tonnes 
could be extracted before development would preclude access to the extension area 
by the quarrying out of haul routes etc. That figure will now have reduced to 
approximately 600,000 tonnes (about 1.5 years working at current average rates of 
extraction)

No changes are proposed to the existing operational elements within the quarry such 
as the processing plant, surface water drainage lagoons and ancillary site 
infrastructure, the existing hours of working at the site and the output and traffic 
generated at the site. There are no restrictions on production at the site but historically 
the output has averaged some 400,000 tonnes per annum which, based on 20 tonne 
carrying capacity vehicles, equates to some 70 loaded vehicles per day (140 lorry 
movements).

Following the completion of extraction operations, a period of two years is proposed 
to remove remaining sandstone stocks, decommission all plant and remove it from the 
site, and restore the site in accordance with an agreed restoration scheme. The 
proposed restoration strategy follows the principles of the scheme approved for the 
existing site and is intended to enhance the ecological and nature conservation 
features of the site. Quarry faces will retain rocky crags and crevices where different 
vegetation types will colonise, scree slopes will create different ground conditions, 
quarry benches will be provided with a range of treatments and conditions, and the 
quarry floor would be restored using quarry fines and soils to provide ground 
conditions to aid the development of species rich grassland with wetland areas. 

As part of the application, a new footpath link/permissive paths from Glyncoch to 
Darren Ddu Road are also proposed. 

As well as the plans and application form, the application is accompanied by an 
Environmental Statement, Planning Statement and “Well Being and Environmental 
Health Issues” Report.

COMMITTEE SITE VISIT

A site visit by members of the Planning & Development Committee was undertaken 
on 3rd December 2019. Members viewed the site from the viewing platform within the 

Tudalen 12



quarry. It was a clear day and visibility was very good which allowed members to 
consider the site and the existing operations in a wider landscape context.

(For Members information: Previously at the Development Control Committee of 3rd 
November 2016 it was resolved that a Committee Site Visit would be held, prior to the 
application being brought before Committee for determination. It was agreed that due 
to accessibility issues and health and safety precautions that will need to be taken, the 
Committee would be represented by a small group of Members of the Development 
Control Committee for the part of the visit that took place within the quarry. This visit 
was held on 5th December 2016. (Minute No.78. of the Development Control 
Committee, on 3rd November 2016 refers.) 

SITE APPRAISAL

Craig Yr Hesg Quarry lies on the western side of the Taff Valley about 1km north of 
the built up area of Pontypridd. The total area of the land inside the planning 
application site boundary is 36.7 hectares, and the western extension area comprises 
an area of 11.24 hectares. The net area proposed for quarry extraction within the 
proposed extension comprises an area of 5.52 hectares and the proposed northern 
screening landform would cover an area of 2.1 hectares.

The proposed western extension area currently comprises grazing land with some 
pockets and linear strips of rougher vegetation. A number of intermittent dry stone 
walls are present but they are generally in a poor state of repair. The area comprises 
mainly gently sloping land which rises to a gentle dome, with steeper slopes to the 
west down to Darren Ddu Road.

The proposed western extension area is mainly bounded by agricultural land and 
woodland, apart from in the south east where it is bounded by the existing quarry. 

The existing quarry is bounded by Glyncoch Rugby Ground and Clubhouse and the 
residential areas to the north, the prominent ridgeline of Coed Graig yr Hesg to the 
south west, and to the east by a narrow corridor of woodland between the site and the 
B4273 Ynysybwl Road, and also by residential properties along this road. 

The nearest properties to the western extension area are beyond the agricultural land 
to the north. Six of the residential properties in Conway Close are within 200m of the 
proposed operational area, with a further four property curtilages within 200m of the 
operational area. Part of the playing fields at Cefn Primary School is also within 200m 
of the quarry operational area although the school buildings are not.

Part of the school building, and residential properties in Conway Close, Orchard Drive, 
Pearson Crescent and Pen-y-bryn (33 in total) are within 200m of the northern 
screening landform but disturbance from its construction is limited to a maximum of 8 
weeks.

Much of the existing quarry site and its surroundings are covered by a Woodland Tree 
Preservation Order (No 10). This adjoins the site of the proposed quarry extension at 
its southern tip, but the proposed extension will not encroach into it. The Cwm Clydach 
Special Landscape Area lies immediately to the south and west of the extension area 
but does not encroach into the site.

Tudalen 13



Two-way access to the quarry is from the B4273 (Ynysybwl Road) via the recently 
improved former ‘entrance only’ access road (planning permission 13/1039/10 refers). 
The previous ‘exit only’ road is now only used for emergency use.  Adjacent to the 
access road are a small number of residential properties, including Rogart Terrace. 

The quarry produces aggregate from a deposit of pennant sandstone which is one of 
the highest quality sources of skid resistant surfacing aggregate in the UK. This makes 
it particularly suitable for major road surfacing projects such as motorways, 
interchanges and airport runways.  The material has been used in infrastructure 
provided for the 2012 Olympics as well as more locally in the construction of the Porth 
Bypass and the Newport Southern Distributor Road.

The main area where the quarry is currently being worked lies within the western part 
of the existing quarry site, with the processing plant lying in the eastern part of the 
quarry, approximately 60m from the nearest residential property at Garth Avenue.  At 
present the quarry faces and benches are being developed in a north-westerly 
direction. The quarry void area currently contains stockpiles of processed fine 
aggregate, but following the relocation of these stocks, the area where they are 
currently located will be quarried as part of the existing approved development 
scheme.

PLANNING HISTORY

The consents for the extraction activities at the site are as follows: 

08/1380/10: Application for determination of conditions for mineral site incorporating 
the four existing planning permissions listed below. (ROMP under The 
Environmental Act 1995) Approved 24/04/13. 

56/86/0827: Extension to Existing Sandstone Quarry. Approved 20/08/93.

349(Z)970: Extension of Quarry Working Area. Approved 27/01/70.

P22/Z/596: Extension to Quarry. Approved 20/08/65.

5183: Quarry. Approved 07/01/49.

Other significant consents are as follows:

13/1039/10: Improvements to quarry entrance to provide two way quarry entrance 
and exit. Granted 14/03/13.

13/0825/23: Erection of an asphalt plant within Class B, Part 19 of Schedule 2 of the 
Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995. Granted 
18/1/13.

T/99/2567: Proposal to replace part of existing dry stone processing plant- Approval 
of detailed plans under the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) Order 1995.  Granted 06/09/99.

349/223/71: Crushing, screening and coating plant. Permitted Development (no 
date). 

Tudalen 14



PUBLICITY

The application has been the subject of neighbourhood notification, site notices and 
press notices, due to the application being a major application that has been 
submitted with an Environmental Statement. 1 letter of support, 332 letters of 
objection and a petition of objection with 103 signatures have been received. 

 The letter of support is summarised as follows:
 Live in shadow of quarry and have no problem with it;
 It is out of sight, and there is no need to go near it;
 Noise from blasting not excessive – it is just like a lorry rumble;
 Glyncoch will not suffer any adverse effect. 

The letter does however comment that dust from the quarry is a nuisance.

The letters of objection are summarised as follows: 

Noise/ Vibration/ Blasting

 The problems of noise and vibration are ongoing, and disruptive to residents;
 Impacts of blasting are felt in properties surrounding the quarry, including in 

Glyncoch and Berw Road;
 The sound of blasting is frightening and overwhelming at times, concerns 

regarding the impact of the sound on health;  
 Concerns that blasting may not be in legal limits, and if it is, these limits are 

excessive for a residential area;
 Blasting causes the ground and houses to shake, and causes things to fall off 

walls and rattles crockery; 
 Both the vibration and air over pressure from blasting cause these problems 

to residents;
 Blasting is causing damage to buildings, including cracks in properties, 

damage to windows and subsidence. There are concerns about further 
structural damage;

 The blasting is causing damage to water pipes;
 There is a danger of debris from blasting and this has occurred previously;
 Concern that blasting will be much closer to houses, the primary school and 

recreational ground than it is now;
 Effects have worsened over last few years;
 Concerns regarding the adequacy of the monitoring arrangements- not all 

areas monitored, concern regarding procedures and scrutiny;
 Disruption due to traffic at unsociable hours;
 There are mines workings and may be broken ground under the quarry 

extension site making blasting dangerous.

Air Quality:

 Dust is an ongoing problem and is constantly over property and in the 
community. It is particularly of concern in dry weather

 Concern that wheel washing facilities are inadequate to control dust;

Tudalen 15



 There are health concerns regarding the dust as it affects residents’ breathing 
and lung health, and the dust in the air is getting heavier behind Cefn Primary 
School;

 Adverse impacts on the quality of life of the residents of Glyncoch;
 Concern regarding impacts of dust on children at Cefn Primary School;
 Concern that the quarry dust may be causing and exacerbating tuberculosis;
 Dust from vehicles is visible on Berw Road;
 Dust can be seen rising up after blasts from a long distance;
 Concern that the dust and fine particulate matter could cause other diseases 

and health problems such as coughs, pneumonia, catarrh, sore throats, eye 
and ear infections, asthma, silicosis, lung cancer, COPD and pulmonary 
fibrosis. Some of these are already prevalent in Glyncoch community;

 Communities with poorer socio-economic populations, such as Glyncoch, are 
disproportionately susceptible to the effect of air pollution and are at a greater 
health risk;

 Concern that carcinogenic materials are being used in the asphalt production;
 Prevailing winds are to west and south west i.e. towards Glyncoch and 

Pontypridd which would increase air pollution;
 Dust could impact on air quality further afield;
 Concern that the high volume of HGV exhaust fumes are harmful  to the 

environment; 
 Concerns regarding the scrutiny of air quality monitoring equipment used;
 Levels of pollution often exceed the 24 hour mean Air Quality Objective;
 Concern the Public Health and Well Being Report provides insufficient 

evidence to show the quarry extension will not impact on people’s health.

Distance between Quarrying Operations and Residential Area:

 The proposed extension is too close- the quarry should not be extended 
within 175 metres of properties;

 Works are within the 200m “buffer zone”, which is in place to protect residents 
due to dust, nuisance, noise and loss of amenity;

 No clear and justifiable reason to reduce buffer to 175m – inappropriate given 
noise and dust considerations;

 There should be no blasting within 200m of the residential area- this will 
increase the effects of detonations/structural damage;

 200 metres may be insufficient in any case as noise and dust particles will 
travel further than this;

 Working at this distance would breach Human Rights;
 It is already difficult to get home insurance due to the quarry, and this would 

make the situation worse.

Highways/ Access:

 Lorries are travelling too fast along Berw Road;

Tudalen 16



 Increase in lorries using Berw Road raises safety and pollution issues; 
 Camber of Berw Road at town end causes fully laden lorries to lean over- this 

is an accident waiting to happen;
 The railway bridge is not designed for the weight and size of the lorries used; 
 The footway on the railway bridge is too narrow and there are pinch points 

here and on Berw Road; 
 Large vehicles mount the pavement due to the narrow width of the road;
 The proposed extension increases risk to pedestrian and cyclist safety;
 If there are bigger and heavier lorries there will be consequences in terms of 

noise, pollution, delays and possible accidents;
 There is wear and tear of the road surface, with possible structural damage by 

heavy lorries along Berw Road; 
 There has been a significant increase in the number and size of lorries over 

30 years causing a safety risk.  Number of HGVs servicing quarry has been 
significantly underestimated;

 The Environmental Statement states 66 deliveries per day- but there are 
significantly more than this;

 The number of lorry movements per day should be limited by condition;
 Spillage of stones blocks drains on the truck route. During heavy rain water is 

pooling by the railway bridge and the road is frequently flooded;
 Spillage from lorries is also making a mess on the roads;
 The drainage of the new access/exit is inadequate and water is flowing on to 

the highway, which could be a particular danger if it freezes in the winter;
 Access road to quarry cannot cope with any additional HGV lorries;
 Access often blocked with waiting lorries delaying journey to work; 
 Use of old exit continues with limited views causing traffic to brake with a 

number of collisions;
 Lorry spillage making mess on roads by dropping things. Spillage onto 

pavement is a danger to pedestrians;
 The lorries block Berw Road;
 Lorries keep breaking down causing a hazard;
 There is damage to houses along Berw Road;
 The Environmental Statement states no accidents, but 2 were seen in 2014;
 Any increase in numbers of lorries will lead to traffic jams; 
 Lorries park on the pavement in Berw Road and Rogart Terrace  causing a 

hazard and have driven over the pavement;
 The sign by Police Station has been damaged;
 Pontypridd Bridge cannot cope with weight and length of 44 tonne vehicles;
 Some lorries use Trallwn area where there is an 18 tonne weight limit on The 

White Bridge and lorries turning onto Berw Road cause a hazard. Only a 
matter of time before a significant  accident occurs; 

 There should be a new road over fields to join the A470 to remove traffic from 
Berw Road.

Ecology/ Countryside:

Tudalen 17



 Will devastate woodland and meadow;
 Loss of biodiversity and habitat;
 Dispute ecological assessment that extension area has limited opportunities 

for bats. Protected species such as bats and buzzards require a further more 
detailed study;

 A number of other species live around the site and there are no specialist 
surveys to assess potential impact. 

 Increase in dust with asphalt plant and probable increase in noise pollution 
and blasting near woodlands will affect ecosystems;

 Object to any development on a Site of Importance for Nature Conservation; 
 May cause water pollution;
 Landscape/visual amenity, heritage of ridges, woodland and grassland will 

disappear; 
 Will destroy green fields around Glyncoch estate used by residents for 

walking, recreation and to access nature trails of Lan Woods;  
 Nature of homes in Darren Ddu Rd will change from part of countryside to part 

of an industrial site;
 There is an irreversible land form change;
 Concern the restoration may not happen.

Other:

 Massive hole will be left in ground to depth of 100m with risk of injuries and 
deaths due to falls and drowning;

 The perimeter fencing is unsightly;
 The fencing and screening will be in full view of neighbouring properties, 

impacting on their outlook;
 Site above geological fault lines- the quarry floods above old drift mine with 

average levels of 107m AOD, and the quarry floor is 100m AOD;
 A water main crosses the site; 
 Concerned regarding displacement of water sources;
 Other quarry sites with same quality stone in Caerphilly, e.g. Gelligaer 

(mothballed),  which are not near residential areas, with better transport links 
should be utilised; 

 Concern extraction rates will increase;
 The site appears to be on a large burial site/mound;
 The quarry has no economic benefits to the area; 
 The nearest houses will suffer from loss of privacy and overshadowing due to 

the development;
 Devaluation of houses; 
 There is a conflict of interest as Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council 

own the land;
 Loss of fields used to exercise and making it harder to access those 

remaining is likely to adversely affect health of local area; 
 Predict increase in rates of mental health disorders (stress, anxiety and 

depression);

Tudalen 18



 Questions regarding the quality of the aggregate being produced;
 Queries regarding what mitigation plans for activities are to be put in place;
 There should be a financial bond in place to ensure restoration;
 One of the reasons for allowing the previous extension was that the 

operations would be limited to 30 years;
 Claims of liaison with the community are refuted.

CONSULTATION

Public Health, Protection & Community Services: Have provided advice on what 
information is required to ensure impacts from the quarry in terms of air quality, noise 
and well-being can be limited, including a particulate matter management plan. Have 
suggested a financial contribution is made towards the Council carrying out air quality 
monitoring in the area. Have suggested that vibration levels and air overpressure limits 
are set in order to minimise any impact on the local community.

Highways Development Control: No objection raised, subject to a legal agreement for 
a financial contribution towards the additional maintenance liability resulting from the 
heavy goods vehicle movements over an additional period of time. Access 
arrangements following the improvements to the southern access are considered 
acceptable.

Countryside: No objections subject to conditions and a Section 106 Agreement for 
habitat management to encourage wildflower meadow and appropriate woodland 
management. Restoration details should be subject to future consideration and 
mitigation planting should be based on a narrower list of species. 

Cwm Taf University Health Board:  Works may give rise to annoyance from visible 
dust, noise and vibration. It is unlikely that these would result in direct health effects 
but rather indirect well-being and quality of life effects. Local Air Quality is compliant 
with the relevant NAQS for PM10 but some deterioration is probable even though it 
would still be likely to meet NAQS objectives. A dust management plan should be a 
priority together with continued air quality monitoring. Welcome proposals to engage 
with the community via Site Liaison Committee and other methods.

Public Health Wales: Note that there are no proposals to increase throughput or output 
at the site (although the report does state there are no restrictions on production at the 
site), which averages 400,000 tonnes per annum. With regards local air quality 
impacts, the Air Quality Progress Report 2019 shows latest PM10 monitoring data 
(from Upper Garth Avenue, Gyncoch, for January to September 2018) in the locality 
is good and that PM10 concentrations comply with both long and short term health-
based national air quality objectives. As such, and providing there is no increase in 
activity at the quarry site, adverse air quality impacts – and consequently human health 
impacts - are unlikely. This is confirmed by the Air Quality Progress Report 2019. 

The Cwm Taf University Health Board response highlights the key public health 
considerations linked with the proposed application. These remain valid; the more 
recent information submitted by the applicant does not change this position. We fully 
support intentions to carry out air quality monitoring in the community.

Tudalen 19



Natural Resources Wales: No objection, subject to the quarrying depth being limited 
to 100 metres A.O.D.

Coal Authority: No objection raised as the proposed development is not subject to 
mining legacy.

Cadw: No objection raised as the development is unlikely to have an impact on 
scheduled ancient monuments or Ynysangharad Park and will only have a low impact 
on the Registered Historic Landscape.

Glamorgan Gwent Archaeological Trust: No objection raised, subject to a condition 
requiring an archaeological watching brief.

Dwr Cymru Welsh Water: No objection raised, but consider the water main proposed   
to be diverted should be done prior to the construction of the screening landforms 
rather than prior to Phase 2 of the extraction. Are unable to permit the proposed 
northern screening landform to be built over the water main. The applicant will be 
required to apply for a diversion of the main under s185 of the Water Industry Act 1991 
and request a condition to this effect.

Request that a ground vibration peak particle velocity (ppv) blasting limit of 
50mm/sec is set for DCWW apparatus.

Caerphilly County Borough Council: No objection raised. 

Welsh Government Planning Division: No comments made. 

Network Rail- No comments made.

Health and Safety Executive- No comments made.

Western Power Distribution: No comments made

Pontypridd Town Council: Object due to adverse environmental impacts on the 
community, residents and the highway network, including pedestrian safety. Concern 
is also expressed regarding the effect on the listed Pontypridd Museum and the 
William Edwards Bridge. 

Ynysybwl and Coed y Cwm Community Council- Object due to traffic, environmental, 
noise and air pollution concerns.

POLICY CONTEXT

Rhondda Cynon Taf Local Development Plan (LDP) 

The following are shown on the Local Development Plan Proposals Map:

The operational area for the extension is all within a Preferred Area of Known 
Mineral Resource (Policy SSA 25);

A small section of the western edge of the site is part of a far broader Site of 
Importance for Nature Conservation- Craig Yr Hesg/Lan Wood, but is outside of the 
proposed extraction area Policy (AW8.77);

Tudalen 20



The existing quarry site is a recognised Regionally Important Geological Site (Policy 
AW8.213);

There is a 200 metres buffer zone around the existing quarry and the designated 
Preferred Area of Known Mineral Resource, to safeguard against development that 
would adversely affect their operations. (Policy AW14);

The site is adjacent to a broader Special Landscape Area designation- Cwm Clydach 
(Policy NSA 25.4).

The following policies in the Local Development Plan are considered to be most 
relevant to this proposal:

CS2 - Development in the South

CS10 - Minerals

AW 4 – Community Infrastructure & Planning Obligations

AW5- New Development

AW8- Protection and Enhancement of the Natural Environment

AW10- Environmental Protection and Public Health

AW 14 - Safeguarding of Minerals

NSA25- Special Landscape Areas

SSA25- Preferred Area of Known Mineral Resources

The following Supplementary Planning Guidance is also considered relevant:

 Delivering Design & Placemaking – Access, Circulation & Parking
 Nature Conservation
 Employment Skills
 Planning Obligations

National Legislation and Policy Context

Planning Policy Wales – Edition 10 - (PPW) is considered relevant to this proposal.

Minerals Technical Advice Note (MTAN) 1: Aggregates is also considered relevant. 

The Regional Technical Statement for the North Wales and South Wales Regional 
Aggregate Working Parties - First Review (2014) is also relevant as this apportions 
crushed rock requirements to be provided in each Authority over a 25 year period 
(based on the usual 15 year life of an LDP with the need to have a minimum 10 year 
supply remaining at the end of the plan period)

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 is relevant and imposes a 
duty on public bodies to carry out ‘sustainable development’ in accordance with the 
‘sustainable development principle’. 

Tudalen 21



“Sustainable development” means the process of improving the economic, social, 
environmental and cultural well-being of Wales by taking action, in accordance with 
the sustainable development principle, aimed at achieving the well-being goals.

‘Sustainable development principle’ means that Local Authorities must act in a manner 
which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the 
ability of future generations to meet their own needs.

In order to achieve this principle the Act introduces five ways of working to support 
decision making which ensures public bodies take account of: long-term thinking, an 
integrated approach, engagement, collaboration and preventative action.

Well-being goals identified in the Act are: 

 A prosperous Wales; 
 A resilient Wales; 
 A healthier Wales; 
 A more equal Wales; 
 A Wales of cohesive communities; 
 A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language; and 
 A globally responsible Wales

The Environment (Wales) Act 2016 has been designed to complement the Wellbeing 
of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 by applying the principles of sustainable 
development to the management of Wales’ natural resources. 

It also imposes a duty to require all public authorities, when carrying out their functions 
in Wales, to seek to “maintain and enhance biodiversity” where it is within the proper 
exercise of their functions. In doing so, public authorities must also seek to “promote 
the resilience of ecosystems”.

The “sustainable management of natural resources” means— (a) using natural 
resources in a way and at a rate that promotes achievement of sustainable 
development and the well-being goals (b) taking other action that promotes 
achievement of that objective, and (c) not taking action that hinders achievement of 
that objective.

REASONS FOR REACHING THE RECOMMENDATION

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that, if 
regard is to be had to the development plan for the purposes of any determination to 
be made under the Planning Acts, the determination must be made in accordance with 
the plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

Furthermore, applications that are not in accordance with relevant policies in the plan 
should not be allowed, unless material considerations justify the grant of planning 
permission. 

It is important to recognise that this is a consolidating application which, if granted, 
would extend the life of the existing operational area of the quarry significantly as well 
as allow an extension to it. Therefore the continuing impacts of the operation of the 

Tudalen 22



existing area have to be considered. The current planning permission for the existing 
quarry expires in 2022. If this proposal was granted planning permission, this would 
extend its life until 2047. While extraction will move deeper and laterally into the 
extension area, the existing processing area will still host the crusher, ancillary plant, 
and access.

Applicant’s Justification for the Development

In the application submission, the following key information by the applicant is given 
to support their case: 

Extraction at Craig yr Hesg represents the primary minerals strategy of the Authority 
and release of reserves at the site is central to ensuring the continuity of aggregates 
supply and delivery of the LDP Minerals Strategy;

The reduced distance (from 200 metres) between the site and Conway Close is based 
on the need to secure a logical quarry working area and avoid substantial sterilisation 
of resources (see below);

The Inspector deleted the policy in the Deposit LDP on “Community Amenity 
Protection Zones” and stated in his report that the impacts of the extension would be 
based on actual effects and not on policy lines;

The existing quarry permission allows extraction within 140 metres of Gardner Close;

The proposed use of the existing plant at the site is based on “no change in 
circumstances”;

There is a need to prevent sterilisation of the High Specification Aggregate, and the 
drilling has demonstrated a Polished Stone Value (PSV) of 68+. The stone is therefore 
of the same quality and physical properties as that extracted from the existing quarry. 
A PSV of 60 is considered to have high skid resistance. A PSV of over 65 is needed 
for some surfaces, such as some motorway sections, interchanges and airport 
runways. Craig yr Hesg stone has a PSV of 68-70, making it one of the highest quality 
sources of skid resistant aggregate in the UK;

Mitigation will be provided by way of the landscape screening land form, which will be 
seeded with trees. This will limit the impact on residential amenity. Once the screening 
land form has been established, there will be little visual impact on properties in 
Glyncoch and Cefn;

The impacts are within “acceptable limits”, and addresses the “acceptable proven 
safety limits” referred to in Policy CS10. Blast criteria can be met, impacts of dust are 
likely to be “of short duration and slight”, PM10 contribution from the quarry is only a 
small percentage of the annual mean air quality objective for PM10 (11.25% at worst), 
which has not been exceeded, the impact on air quality is considered acceptable in 
terms of human health;

The operations taking place within 200 metres of residential properties will be short 
term;

Tudalen 23



While 5.7 million tonnes of permitted reserves were left at 1/1/15, the quarry has 
reached the full lateral limits of its permission and cannot quarry the full extent of these 
as haul roads and benches would have to be removed, precluding access into the 
extension area.

The above is noted, and there are three key issues to be considered in determining 
whether the application is acceptable - need for the mineral, distance from sensitive 
developments and acceptability of impacts. These are set out below.

Need for the Mineral

PPW sets out the Welsh Government’s general policies for mineral development in 
Chapter 5.14.  Paragraph 5.14.4 states: -

Mineral working is different from other forms of development in that: 

 extraction can only take place where the mineral is found to occur; 
 it is transitional and cannot be regarded as a permanent land use even though 

operations may occur over a long period of time; and 
 when operations cease land needs to be reclaimed to a high standard and to 

a beneficial and sustainable after-use so as to avoid dereliction and to bring 
discernible benefits to communities and/or wildlife.

Paragraph 5.14.1 states that society needs, and will continue to need for the 
foreseeable future, a wide range of minerals. The role of the planning authority in 
relation to mineral extraction is to balance the fundamental requirement to ensure the 
adequate supply of minerals with the protection of amenity and the environment. 

The key principles are to: 

 provide positively for the safeguarding and working of mineral resources to 
meet society’s needs now and in the future, encouraging the efficient and 
appropriate use of high quality materials; 

 protect environmental and cultural characteristic of places, including those 
highly cherished for their intrinsic qualities, such as wildlife, landscapes, 
ancient woodlands and historic features, and to protect human health and 
safety and general well-being; 

 reduce the impact of mineral extraction and related operations during the 
period of working by ensuring that impacts on relevant environmental qualities 
caused by mineral extraction and transportation, for example air quality and 
soundscape, are within acceptable limits; and 

 achieving, without compromise, a high standard of restoration and aftercare 
so as to avoid dereliction and to bring discernible benefits to communities, 
heritage and/or wildlife, including beneficial after uses or opportunities for 
enhancement of biodiversity and the historic environment.

These principles are expanded upon in MTAN1 with the overarching objective being 
to ensure supply is managed in a sustainable way so that the best balance between 
environmental, economic and social considerations is struck, whilst making sure that 

Tudalen 24



the environmental and amenity impacts of any necessary extraction are kept to a level 
that avoids causing demonstrable harm to interests of acknowledged importance. 

In order to provide an adequate supply of minerals that society needs, PPW and MTAN 
1 require 10 year land banks of crushed rock permitted reserves to be maintained at 
all points throughout the LDP period in each Local Planning Authority, including at the 
end of the Plan period.

MTAN1 also requires the production of Regional Technical Statements (RTS) to 
ensure that there is an adequate supply of primary aggregates within a region. The 
role of the RTS is to consider the required supply in each LPA area in order to ensure 
an adequate supply. 

The RTS 1st Review for South Wales was published in August 2014. The RTS 1st 
Review indicated that at the base date of 31st December 2010, the 25 year 
requirement for crushed rock in RCT was 17.25 million tonnes and that the stock of 
crushed rock reserves stood at 13 million tonnes – a shortfall of a minimum of 4.25 
million tonnes. On that basis RCT was required to make allocations for crushed rock 
working in the LDP as an adequate supply was not in place.

Policy CS10(1) of the LDP reflects the requirement to maintain a minimum landbank 
of 10 years permitted rock reserves throughout the plan period and in order to achieve 
that a Preferred Area of Known Mineral Resource was designated as an extension to 
Craig yr Hesg (Policy SSA25). 

The LDP Minerals Background Paper – December 2009 stated that allocating a site 
for a new quarry was not considered a viable option due to the lack of candidate sites 
and an extension to an existing quarry was favoured in PPW. It was however, 
acknowledged that the designation of the site as a preferred area does not afford the 
land, and specifically the entire boundary of the site, guaranteed permission for 
mineral extraction. It was recognised that further evidence would be required to show 
how extraction would take place in accordance with National Policy. This reflects the 
requirement to minimise the adverse environmental or amenity impacts to within 
acceptable limits.

In April 2011, subsequent to the RTS base date, the Vale of Glamorgan Council 
approved an extension to the Forest Wood Quarry, as the boundary of the application 
site was primarily in that Local Authority. This created a further 3.395 million tonnes of 
permitted reserves at that quarry. However, due the geological conditions, it is 
estimated that approximately 1.804 million tonnes is actually within Rhondda Cynon 
Taf, and this has been accepted by the South Wales Regional Aggregates Working 
Party (who prepare the RTS) as being part of Rhondda Cynon Taf’s land bank for the 
purposes of the Regional Technical Statement. Therefore a shortfall of a minimum of 
2.45 million tonnes remains, and it would be expected that this would be found from 
the Preferred Area designated at Craig yr Hesg.

The RTS is clear that the apportionments are a minimum requirement. In addition they 
are a snapshot of the situation at the base date. They are also not split into different 
types of stone (Hendy and Forest Wood are both limestone quarries, whereas Craig 
yr Hesg is a sandstone quarry), nor take account of the different purposes or markets 

Tudalen 25



the stone is required for. Therefore, while the RTS should be the starting point in the 
consideration of need, it is recognised that there are significant issues in solely using 
the RTS for the purposes of assessing the need for the level of reserves proposed as 
part of this application. 

It is notable that the 10 million tonnes of reserves proposed as part of this application 
is over four times higher than the minimum 2.45 million tonnes the RTS suggests the 
County Borough needs. Paragraph 49 of MTAN 1 states that land banks must be 
adequate for commercial purposes, but “not excessive”. The question that arises is 
whether the proposed additional reserve is adequate or excessive.

It is recognised that there is a need for minerals to be extracted and that the Pennant 
sandstone reserve at Craig yr Hesg is of national importance, (as discussed in LDP 
policy SSA 25), due to its very high skid resistance properties. The applicant points 
out the high PSV sandstone produced at Craig yr Hesg should be treated as a “special 
case”, that the apportionments in the RTS are a minimum only and that the strategy 
set out in the RTS relies on the release of additional reserves at Craig yr Hesg. None 
of the above is disputed. 

In addition, one of the ways of working introduced in the Well-being of Future 
Generations Act 2015 is the adoption of long-term thinking in order to achieve well-
being goals. It is not considered to be in the best interests of the economy of the 
County Borough or the local residents to incrementally extend the quarry to merely 
achieve the minimum quantities set out in the RTS. Such a short term approach would 
give the local community no certainty as to the full scale and end date of operations 
and would not allow the developer to provide for longer term mitigation, such as the 
landscape screening bund, at an early stage. 

The 2018 Annual Report published by the SWRAWP in July 2019 indicates that the 
landbank in RCT was 14 years based on the average sales over a the 10-year period 
from 2009. However, the Report notes that the 3-year average sales for the period 
2016-2018 were higher in RCT than the 10 year average which would indicate a 
landbank of 12 years. Utilising the 3-year average as a base, given that it is indicative 
of rising sales in RCT, the extension area would add approximately 14.67 years to the 
landbank giving a total of approximately 27 years. This would be just adequate to cover 
the 25 year period of the RTS Second Review due in 2019 on the basis of the same 
methodology as the current RTS First Review. However, the RTS Second Review has 
recently been released for consultation and it is proposed that the methodology is 
refined. Whilst it must be remembered that the RTS Second Review is only a 
consultation draft it does indicate that it is likely that the aggregate requirement for 
RCT is going to be greater than the 2.45 million tonnes for the current RTS. On the 
basis of the above it is considered that the reserves in the proposed extension are 
adequate and not excessive.

Conclusion

There is a clear need for additional reserves of crushed rock to be released in RCT to 
meet the RTS requirements and comply with policy CS10(1) of the LDP. The site is 

Tudalen 26



allocated as a Preferred Area of Known Mineral Resource in Policy SSA25 and the 
amount of reserves released by the proposal is not considered to be excessive. 

In addition, the resource to be released is high polished stone value sandstone which 
whilst plentiful in Wales it is not available in other parts of the UK. It is therefore 
recognised as being of national importance in terms of meeting the needs of society 
as the mineral can only be worked where it is found to occur. However, it has to be 
acknowledged that is currently no shortage of supply of high polished stone value 
sandstone in South Wales.

Principle of the Development

The area proposed for the extraction element of the extension is all within the 
boundaries of the area designated as a Preferred Area of Known Mineral Resource 
under Policy SSA 25 of the Local Development Plan. A significant section of the 
proposed engineered northern screening land form is outside this Preferred Area, but 
this is not considered contrary to policy as it is not part of the operational area for the 
quarry. 

Given the above, an extension to the quarry in this area is considered acceptable in 
principle. However, the details of any application submitted in respect of the area, and 
the nature and impact of operations still have to be considered acceptable in practice 
for permission to be granted. 

Distance from Sensitive Developments

Minerals Technical Advice Note (MTAN) 1: Aggregates (Paragraphs 70 and 71) 
identifies a suitable minimum distance between hard rock quarries and sensitive 
development as 200 metres. It states that any reduction from this distance should be 
evidenced by clear and justifiable reasons. Sensitive development is defined in 
Paragraph 70 of MTAN 1 as “any building occupied by people on a regular basis and 
includes housing areas, hostels, meeting places, schools and hospitals where an 
acceptable standard of amenity should be expected”. It is considered that although the 
reference in MTAN 1 is to “buildings” the intent of the policy is to provide separation 
distances between land-uses so the measurement should be taken from the edge of 
the curtilage of the nearest sensitive developments as the curtilage still forms part of 
these sensitive developments in land-use terms, to determine the separation distance 
from the quarry. The measurement should be to the nearest operational part of the 
quarry. 

In respect of distances between the proposed quarry extension and sensitive 
developments, the application has a distance marked on the plan of 175 metres 
between the quarry and 36 Conway Close (the nearest house) and 243 metres  
between the quarry and Cefn Primary School. These are measured from the actual 
buildings to the edge of the extraction area.  However, it is the view of Officers that the 
distances should be measured from the edge of the curtilage/ school playfields to the 
edge of the operational area of the quarry, and using these measurements the 
distance is 170 metres and 164 metres respectively. It is also noted that there are a 
number of residential properties that fall within 200 metres of the existing operational 

Tudalen 27



area and a series of planning conditions which relate to the protection of amenity of 
those areas. 

Therefore it is considered that parts of the proposed extension are within 200 metres 
of both housing and the school playing fields at Cefn Primary School for the purposes 
of this application. The key justifications given by the applicant for operations within 
200 metres of such developments are as follows:

The noise and blast vibration criteria which are recommended in the Environmental 
Impact Assessment can be met;

The effects on amenity would be minimised by the screening landform;

The operations taking place 175 metres [from the nearest property- based on the 
applicant’s measurement] would be short term (on the upper benches), intermittent 
and a comparatively small proportion of the extraction area, where the majority of 
works, both laterally and at depth within the quarry would be at a distance in excess 
of 200 metres. 

Compliance with the 200 metre distance set out in national guidance is a key material 
consideration and it is considered that there should be “clear and justifiable” reasons 
for this not being the case. It is considered that the assessment to be made in 
determining this application is whether impacts of quarrying and other activities are 
capable of being managed to a level where they have a minimal impact on sensitive 
development. This is addressed in the next section. 

Acceptability of Impacts

It is considered one of key impacts of this proposal that need to be assessed is in 
respect of the health, well-being and amenity of local residents. These are considered 
to comprise both the impacts on the residents and users of other sensitive 
development of extending the life of the existing operational area and the fact that the 
extension will bring operations closer to certain residential properties and other 
sensitive development (particularly Cefn Primary School) than it is at present. 

In respect of the acceptability of impacts, Policy CS10 of the Local Development Plan 
is the core policy in that document relating to minerals. As well as trying to ensure a 
supply of minerals is maintained throughout the Plan period, it seeks to ensure that 
impacts upon residential areas and sensitive land uses from mineral operations and 
the transportation of mineral are limited to an “acceptable proven safe limit”. 

Policy AW5 seeks to ensure no significant impact on the amenities of neighbouring 
occupiers. Policy AW10 states that development proposals will not be permitted where 
they would cause or result in a risk of unacceptable harm to health and / or local 
amenity because of various types of pollution, including air pollution and noise, unless 
it can be demonstrated that measures can be taken to address any significant adverse 
risk to public health, the environment and / or impact upon local amenity.

Following the submission of the planning application, it was agreed with the applicant 
that the “Public Health and Well Being” Report would be submitted as a document to 
accompany the planning application and address a number of outstanding queries in 

Tudalen 28



relation to health and well-being. This was submitted by the applicant and a further 
public consultation exercise was undertaken by the Council on the planning application 
as a result of this.

It is considered that the key issues for health, well-being and amenity in respect of this 
application are the impacts on air quality due to fine and very fine particulate matter 
and “nuisance” dust, blasting and operational noise. These are considered in turn 
below.

Dust and Air Quality

Many of the objectors express concern in relation to dust and concern about the health 
effects of the dust. In Mineral Technical Advice Note 1: Aggregates (MTAN1) the 
Welsh Government indicates that research has indicated that people living close to 
mineral workings consider dust to be the main impact of mineral extraction. 

It is recognised that the principle sources of dust from a mineral working are likely to 
be associated with the excavation of soil, overburden and quarry waste material and 
its use in the construction of the screening landform; drilling and blasting operations; 
the movement of vehicles within the site and the processing and storage of excavated 
stone. Condition 30 of the ROMP permission sets out the controls the applicant is 
required to put in place to control dust on the existing site.

The construction of the landscape bund has the potential to give rise to dust and there 
are sensitive receptors in close proximity. However, the duration of works will be short 
term (8 weeks) and with the implementation of similar site management practices to 
those already in place at the site, the risk of significant dust nuisance and significant 
increase in PM10 exposure is considered to be low.

The existing processing plant is recognised as potentially the most significant source 
of dust from the quarry and it is located close to sensitive development. However, it 
has to be recognised that the processing plant is already a contributor to the current 
air quality position which is not considered to be in breach of the current NAQS 
objective levels for PM10. The processing plant also benefits from an Environmental 
Permit to control air emissions. There are no proposals to increase annual output as 
a result of this planning application but it is acknowledged that the quarry life will 
extend for a longer period. 

Mineral dust coarser than 10µm may constitute a ‘nuisance’ due to soiling of surfaces 
but does not pose a risk to human health. Fine particles of 10µm or less, referred to 
as PM10 can be inhaled and depending on the concentrations and the nature of the 
particles, they can be associated with health impacts. The very fine particles of 2.5µm 
or less are referred to as PM2.5. 

There are no statutory or recommended levels of dust deposition which constitute an 
acknowledged nuisance, but 200 mg/m²/day is often quoted as a threshold for 
nuisance dust. Large dust particles, which make up the greatest proportion of dust 
emissions from mineral workings (up to 95%) will largely deposit within 100m of the 
source. Intermediate particles can travel further but it is unlikely that adverse impacts 
will occur at distances in excess of 250m. The submitted dust assessment considers 

Tudalen 29



potential receptors within 250m in respect of nuisance dust. Fine particles can travel 
further from the source so for PM10 the potential human receptors within 500m are 
considered. 

In terms of nuisance dust there are no sensitive developments within 100m of the 
extension area and therefore adverse impacts from nuisance dust are not anticipated 
provided standard dust management controls continue to be applied as per existing 
planning conditions. It should be noted that there are seventeen residential properties 
within 100m of the quarry plant. However, the impact on these properties was 
considered as part of the ROMP permission and controls were put in place which can 
be replicated in any new planning permission granted. The mineral crushing and 
screening plant and directly associated equipment also operates under the terms of 
an Environmental Permit issued by the Council. The terms of the Permit seek to ensure 
that all appropriate preventative measures are taken to avoid pollution of the air.

The law requires the Local Authority to regularly review air quality in its area against 
Air Quality Objectives [AQO].  In doing so, the Local Authority has identified two air 
pollutants, Nitrogen Dioxide [NO2] and Fine Particulate Matter [PM10], as requiring 
closer examination.

Air Quality Regulations prescribe National Air Quality Strategy (NAQS) – objectives to 
be achieved for a range of pollutants such as PM10 and PM2.5 particulates which are 
relevant to mineral working and NO2 relevant for associated HGV emissions. 

Predicted PM10 data from DEFRA shows that the 2018 average PM10 concentrations 
in the area occupied by the site was 12.64 µg/m³, 31.6% of the annual mean NAQS 
objective for PM10 of 40µg/m³.  The NAQS daily mean objective for PM10 is 50µg/m³ 
which should not be exceeded more than 35 times per year. It is important to note that 
the NAQS objectives represent a threshold above which government considers the 
health risks associated with air pollution are unacceptable, nonetheless it is also 
recognised that efforts to reduce pollution more widely may be beneficial. 

There are also 3 Local Authority monitoring stations at Garth Avenue, within 91m of 
the site processing facilities. RCT local monitoring data from these stations indicates 
that annual mean PM10 concentrations ranged between 13.45µg/m³ and 22.37µg/m³, 
which equates to between 33.6% and 55.9% of the annual mean NAQS objective of 
40µg/m³ with 18 daily means exceeding the 50µg/m³ NAQS objective. Surface related 
mining operations remote from processing plant are generally associated with 
relatively small increases in mean concentration of PM10 particles (2µg/m3) but the 
applicants have suggested a ‘worst case’ figure of 5.2µg/m³. On that basis the 
concentration would be expected to remain below the annual mean NAQS objective 
for PM10.

The Local Air Quality Management - Air Quality Progress Report 2019 produced by 
the Council, indicates that at present it is believed that the levels of Fine Particulate 
Matter (PM10) at Glyncoch are compliant with the relevant NAQS Objectives for Fine 
Particulate Matter and Nitrogen Dioxide. Public Health Wales consider the current air 
quality in terms of PM10 particulates to be good. 

Tudalen 30



Glyncoch is currently monitored due to long term monitoring previously identifying the 
area of Glyncoch as experiencing levels of PM10 potentially incongruous to other 
areas of Rhondda Cynon Taf. Glyncoch appears to observe a widely fluctuating trend 
which may indicate the influence of particular local factors. It is possible that during 
2018 the impact of Craig Yr Hesg Quarry on local PM10 levels may have been 
subdued, a trend which has been observed since 2015 and may be as a result of 
ongoing improvements to reduce PM10 emissions from Craig Yr Hesg Quarry. 
Changes to locally prevailing weather and future changes at Craig Yr Hesg Quarry, 
means it is difficult to know if future compliance will continue.  As such the Local 
Authority will continue to robustly monitor Fine Particulate Matter levels at Glyncoch.

Notwithstanding the above, it is considered that active management of the quarry 
processes to prevent air quality and neighbour amenity problems due to particulate 
matter (including both fine particulate matter and nuisance dust) is a key issue for this 
application, and the application does acknowledge the importance of this. Following 
consultation and liaison with the Council’s Public Health, Protection & Community 
Services and Public Health Wales it is now considered that sufficient information has 
been submitted to provide evidence that processes can be managed to ensure a 
limited impact upon the level of air quality and neighbour amenity in respect of 
particulate matter and therefore the application is considered to be acceptable in this 
respect. In particular Public Health Wales and Cwm Taf University Health Board have 
indicated that based on current levels of activity adverse air quality impacts and 
consequently human health impacts are unlikely.

Public Health, Protection & Community Services have also requested a financial 
contribution towards allowing the Local Authority to carry out monitoring of air quality 
in the Community due to the proposals and the issues they raise.  This has been 
agreed by the applicants and can be covered by a Section 106 Agreement which is 
considered further below. 

Blasting

The applicant has submitted information which estimates there would be 15 blasts 
over the lifetime of the quarry within the area between 175 metres and 200 metres 
from the extraction area to the nearest building, although again this does not take into 
account the issues with this measurement as discussed above, nor the blasts taking 
place within 200 metres of the school playing field. 

A review of the chapter of the Environmental Statement on blasting has concluded 
that the development can achieve the ground vibration level of 6mm per second for 
95% of all blasts within a 6 month period, with no single blast greater than 10 mm per 
second. This is the standard set out in MTAN 1 and in the existing ROMP condition. 
The review does acknowledge that achieving such levels will involve using less charge 
than would be considered optimal for phases 1 and 2, and that ground vibration 
monitoring at Conway Close will be vitally important to ensure protection of amenity. 
However, the danger of even cosmetic damage to properties at the proposed level of 
vibration is negligible. 

Tudalen 31



At a blasting level of 6mm per second when measured at the nearest residential 
properties, it is highly likely that local residents will feel the vibration, either through the 
ground or through the air, even if it is not causing damage. BS 5228 – Code of Practice 
for Noise and Vibration Control on Construction and Open Sites: Vibration (Part 2) 
acknowledges that human beings are known to be very sensitive to vibration, the 
threshold of perception being typically in the ppv range of 0.14 to 0.3 mm/sec. A ppv 
of 1 mm/sec is likely to give rise to complaints and blasting at this site does generate 
complaints. However, the amount of charge to be used is calculated beforehand and 
the blast designed to ensure compliance with the existing ROMP condition, and there 
have been no known exceedances of the 6mm per second level, when measured from 
the agreed monitoring points. 

It is acknowledged that many residents find the blasts that occur an unpleasant 
experience and feel, despite the compliance with the 6mm per second standard and 
what has been stated above, that the blasts are causing damage to their properties. 

BS 5228 states that the level at which cosmetic damage to residential structures will 
occur is 15 mm/sec at 4 Hz, rising to 20 mm/sec at 15 Hz and 50 mm/sec at 40Hz and 
above. Minor damage could occur at vibration magnitudes which are greater than 
twice these levels (30 mm/sec at 4 Hz, rising to 40 mm/sec at 15 Hz and 100 mm/sec 
at 40Hz and above) and major damage could occur at values greater than 4 times 
these levels (60 mm/sec at 4 Hz, rising to 80 mm/sec at 15 Hz and 200 mm/sec at 
40Hz and above). Therefore, even at the lowest level for cosmetic damage of 15 
mm/sec this is significantly higher than the blast vibration limit of 6mm/sec for 95 % of 
blasts over a 6 month period and no blast greater than 10mm/sec.

These blast vibration limits are set in national guidance and therefore it would be 
considered unreasonable to reduce this without very good reason. Therefore, while it 
is anticipated that blasting at the quarry may generate complaints, in respect of the 
impact of blast vibrations on residential properties, the proposed ground vibration 
blasting levels are considered acceptable. 

In respect of air over pressure, a condition is proposed with similar wording to that 
used in the present ROMP to ensure blasts are designed to not exceed 120 dB when 
measured from the nearest residential properties. There have been some 
exceedances of this level in the past, but there are acknowledged difficulties in taking 
readings for air over pressure, principally due to the influence of climatic conditions. 
However, requiring a review of blasting design should assist in minimising the impact 
of air overpressure.

A review undertaken by DCWW has recommended that the maximum level of vibration 
set for their water supply apparatus across and in the vicinity of the site should be set 
at 50 mm per second to prevent damage. The applicants had requested 75 mm per 
second in the application but have indicated that they will accept the level requested 
by DCWW. 

Operational Noise

In respect of general operational noise, the protection of the local community from 
excessive noise is considered an important element in maintaining public health.  

Tudalen 32



Public Health, Protection & Community Services have advised that daytime noise 
levels (7am to 7pm) should be set at the following levels as measured from specified 
locations representative of the potential for noise impact. 

Receptor Criteria

Cefn Heulog 42 dB LAeq

Cefn Primary School 45 dB LAeq

No 36 Conway Close 46 dB LAeq

No 3 Pen y Bryn 47 dB LAeq

Flat above shop Garth Avenue 54 dB LAeq

No 1 Rogart Terrace 55 dB LAeq

Night-time (7pm to 7am) noise levels should be universally set at 42 dB LAeq at all 
locations. 

MTAN1 allows for higher noise limits up to 67dBLAeq to be imposed ‘during temporary 
and short term operations for periods of up to 8 weeks in a year. The applicant 
considers that the screening landform can be constructed within 8 weeks and therefore 
this noise level would apply during that period. 

Conclusion

It is considered that the effects of the proposal can be mitigated and managed to a 
level where they have a minimal impact on sensitive developments surrounding the 
site. Therefore, it is considered that there are clear and justifiable reasons for not 
applying the 200m buffer zone rigidly and the application is acceptable, subject to the 
conditions set out below to ensure this takes place.  

OTHER ISSUES

Ecology

Part 1(6) of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016 imposes a duty on a public authority to 
seek to maintain and enhance biodiversity in the exercise of functions in relation to 
Wales, and in so doing promote the resilience of ecosystems, so far as consistent with 
the proper exercise of those functions. The Craig-yr-Hesg Local Nature Reserve is 
located to the south of the existing quarry and forms part of the much larger Craig-yr-
Hesg/Lan Wood SINC which extends to 89.72 hectares of predominantly ancient semi-
natural woodland with smaller areas of grassland and bracken habitats. The SINC 
adjoins the western boundary of the extension site. No such designations extend into 
the extension area.

Tudalen 33



The applicants have carried out an Ecological Impact Assessment which is included 
within the Environmental Statement. An extended Phase 1 habitat survey of the 
extension area identified that the existing fields were found to contain a sward of 
predominantly semi-improved grassland which is relatively species poor with a lack of 
any vegetation structure. The land is heavily grazed and the potential for any notable 
fauna to occur is considered to be low. The presence of birds and reptiles (slow worm, 
common lizard and adder) on the site has been confirmed by surveys although the 
majority of the site is unsuitable for bird nesting and reptiles given the heavy grazing 
regime. This heavy grazing regime also limits opportunities for invertebrates. The 
extension area offers limited foraging opportunities for bats. No evidence of badger 
was found.

The proposed restoration scheme seeks to mitigate any impact on biodiversity by 
allowing natural woodland regeneration of the western screening mound, woodland 
creation on the northern landscape bund, the creation of different types of quarry 
bench treatments, the creation of scree slopes and the retention of quarry faces with 
crags and ledges.

The Council’s Ecologist has not objected to the application, but considers the 
grassland habitat lost to the quarry extension is likely to be of higher ecological value 
than the habitat assessment concludes. He considers that due to the loss of the 
grassland, some measures should be provided to off-set this. This involves the 
management of residual pieces of grassland around the perimeter of the quarry 
extension, and management of grassland used in the later phrases while it remains. 
He considers these measures, as well as woodland management, should be secured 
through a Habitat Management Plan under a Section 106 Agreement, in the event of 
the planning application being approved. 

It is accepted that due to the size and nature of the operations proposed that mitigation 
for the loss of habitat should be sought. While the applicant does not object to this, 
they object to a Section 106 Agreement and consider this can be addressed via a 
condition. It is agreed that this is an acceptable mechanism to address this issue, and 
conditions are recommended to this effect.

It is noted that the applicant has offered the Council an area of woodland to extend 
the existing Local Nature Reserve as part of this application. However, extending the 
nature reserve is not necessary in order to make the application acceptable and there 
are concerns regarding the cost burden falling on the Council given that no additional 
funding has been offered for this. However, there is considered to be a need for 
woodland management as part of this application, due to the potential for physical 
disturbance and loss of habitat connectivity, particularly given that the Local Nature 
Reserve and Site of Importance for Nature Conservation. Given the above concern 
regarding resources to manage the woodland, it is considered preferable for the 
developer to manage the woodland themselves as part of the proposed Habitat 
Management Plan. 

No objections are raised on the grounds of impact on species, but it is considered that 
the above condition for a Habitat Management Plan should include measures to 
ensure any impacts that do occur due to quarrying are mitigated. In addition, it is 

Tudalen 34



considered that a condition in respect of lighting should be recommended to limit any 
impacts on bats utilising nearby corridors, should such lighting be needed. 

In terms of the restoration of the new quarry bowl and benches, the principle of the 
restoration is based on a balance of allowing natural restoration  of grassland and 
scrub/woodland habitats in some areas, while undertaking strategic tree planting in 
more visually prominent locations. This is considered acceptable in principle, but it is 
considered that the full details of the restoration should be subject to future review and 
agreement.  It is considered this can be done via the recommended condition on long-
term restoration.  It is suggested that to discharge the proposed conditions on interim 
and long term restoration (and a proposed landscaping condition for when the quarry 
is in operation) the tree planting proposed should be of a narrower range of species 
than recommended in the restoration strategy to ensure the woodland forming in those 
areas would be more natural and therefore more valuable as habitat. 

It is also considered that long-term restoration should seek to provide nesting 
opportunities for peregrine falcons on inaccessible quarry ledges as part of a design 
objective of that restoration. Providing for nesting for peregrine falcons is 
recommended as part of the condition on long-term restoration.

Landscape and Visual Amenity

The Environmental Statement has considered the impact of the development on 
landscape character and visual impact. In terms of the impact on landscape character 
Chapter 6 has assessed the landscapes sensitivity to change and the potential 
magnitude of any change which taken together indicate the potential effect on 
landscape character. 

The landscape baseline is set by the LANDMAP Database hosted by Natural 
Resources Wales. LANDMAP separates landscape character into 5 defining aspects 
– Visual and Sensory, Geological, Landscape Habitat, Historic Landscape and 
Cultural Landscape.

The overall evaluation of the site in relation to the five LANDMAP aspect areas is as 
follows

Visual and Sensory – Moderate - locally important, due to some attractive views and 
areas of upland character, but this importance is compromised/diminished by the 
urban associations that are present in parts of the area

Geological Landscape – Moderate – part of Pennant sandstone plateau with quarry of 
at least regional significance.

Landscape Habitats – High – some valuable, relatively scarce habitat such as 
broadleaf woodland, marshy grassland and ffridd habitat that supports a number of 
key species.

Historic Landscape – High – reasonably well preserved irregular fieldscape but the 
coherence of the landscape has been reduced as a result of extensive forestry 
plantation

Tudalen 35



Cultural Landscape – High – large expanse of upland/moorland which are a 
commodity for leisure

The landscape character of the extension area is one characterised as hillside/scarp 
slopes mosaic with areas of open landscape of rough grazing and small scale irregular 
fields, small clumps of deciduous broadleaf woodland. The higher part of the site is 
located along a ridgeline at about 200mAOD and drops away in all directions to a low 
point of approximately 170mAOD.

The features most sensitive to change as identified in the Environmental Statement 
are the vegetation pattern, landscape features and character, public access and 
enjoyment. These features are either high sensitivity or medium sensitivity to change. 

In terms of the vegetation pattern, only small areas of vegetation, hedgerows and 
hedgerow trees are to be removed so the magnitude of change is assessed as small. 
This taken together with the high sensitivity to change leads to an assessment of slight 
adverse significance.

In terms of landscape features and character, the proposed introduction of quarrying 
activities into the extension area gives rise to a medium magnitude of change which 
together with medium sensitivity to change gives rise to an assessment of moderate 
adverse significance.

The magnitude of change in terms of landscape amenity varies with distance from the 
extension area. The magnitude of change is large for the users of footpaths close to 
the site, especially during construction of the landscape bunds. The magnitude will 
diminish to medium and then small as distance increases. The impacts are assessed 
as major adverse during the construction of the screening bund and reducing to 
moderate adverse-slight adverse once the bund is completed. It is envisaged that the 
major adverse impacts would be for a relatively short period of 8 weeks construction 
and a short period before growth becomes established. Following restoration all 
impacts are predicted to be negligible in terms of their significance.

Visual impacts similarly to landscape character impacts are assessed as a 
combination of the visual sensitivity and the magnitude of the change. The Zone of 
Theoretical Visibility has established that the only areas within 1km where the majority 
of the site is visible lie to the immediate west of the proposed extension area. Longer 
distance views of the site occur to the north (Coed y Cwm and the higher ground 
beyond) and north-west (Twyn y Glog) and from across the valley from Cefn 
Eglwysilan and Craig Evan Leyshon Common. Views from the residential areas of 
Glyncoch, Coed y cwm, Cilfynnydd and areas to the south are limited due to 
topography and intervening vegetation.

Views from the north above Coed y Cwm at 1.32km distance are considered to be of 
medium sensitivity and the construction of the screening bund will give rise to a small 
magnitude of change in the overall view which will give rise to a slight adverse impact. 
Once the vegetation on the bund becomes established the impact will reduce to 
negligible. 

Tudalen 36



Views from higher ground to the west at 620m distance are considered to be of high 
sensitivity due to the nature of the receptors. The stripping of soils and the construction 
of the landscape mounds would be visible as would further quarrying. The result would 
be a medium scale change which would be slight adverse initially but increasing to 
moderate adverse.

Views from Craig Evan-Leyshon Common approximately 2km to the north-east are of 
medium sensitivity with many existing detractors within the view. Soil stripping and the 
construction of the screening mound would be visible but at a distance, as would 
quarrying activities but they would be a relatively small part of the view. The change 
would be small and the impact slight adverse.

Views for Bodwenarth approximately 1.3km to the east would be of high sensitivity 
given the residential receptors. The existing quarry faces are an element in the view 
but the extension area will increase the proportion of the quarry within the view and 
result in a small-medium change and slight to moderate adverse impact.

Views for Cefn Eglwysilan Common approximately 2.5km to the south east are of 
medium sensitivity and the quarry is only a small part of the view. The extension will 
therefore result in a small change and a slight adverse impact. 

The quarry extension will have an impact on the immediate landscape character as it 
will alter the nature of land that is currently used for agricultural purposes. The 
construction of the landscape mound will have a major impact over a relatively short 
period of time and impacts thereafter will reduce to moderate or slight adverse during 
working and negligible on completion of restoration. There is clearly an impact, but the 
immediate area is not considered to have sufficient landscape value for this in itself to 
warrant a reason for refusing the application.

Similarly, there will be a visual impact. However, the proposed screening landform will 
block the view of the quarrying operations from the closest properties to the extension 
in Glyncoch. In respect of viewpoints from further away, although the quarry extension 
will be visible it will very much be viewed in conjunction with the existing quarry void, 
and the existing built-up areas and the overall impacts are not considered to be 
significant.

Hydrology and Hydrogeology

The quarry depth is limited to 100m AOD which is above the maximum groundwater 
level of 97.53mAOD. There is no dewatering being undertaken at the quarry in relation 
to groundwater as groundwater inflow from perched water tables and effective rainfall 
discharge through the underlying strata.

Impacts on surface water systems are limited to potential minor impacts on Cefn 
springs although it is unlikely that there will be any impact given that there appears to 
be a perched water table between the site and the springs.

Highways

There are no proposals to increase production at the site, which averages 400,000 
tonnes per annum and therefore the impact of quarry traffic will be unchanged. 

Tudalen 37



However, the impact will be extended for a further 25 years. In recent years 
improvements to the southern access to facilitate two-way movements have allowed 
cessation of the use of the northern access as an exit for HGV’s. The northern access 
is retained for emergency use only. Highways Development Control consider the 
existing access arrangements to be acceptable.

The vast majority of traffic leaving the site turns right at the exit and travels south 
towards Pontypridd. Local Authority traffic survey data for 2012 and 2013 has 
indicated that average daily traffic movements along the B4273 are approximately 
11,600, of which 847 (7.3%) are HGV’s. Of the 847 HGV movements approximately 
140 (16.5%) are attributable to the quarry. In terms of the design capacity of the B4273 
the current peak flows (which occur between 0800 and 0900 in the morning and 
between 1700 and 1800 in the evening) are approximately 67% of the design capacity 
of the road. The road therefore has more than sufficient design capacity to cope with 
the quarry traffic which is a relatively small percentage of overall traffic movements. 

Highways Development Control have not objected to the application, but have raised 
some concerns regarding damage to the road surface from long term further 
operations at the quarry. They have suggested either a financial contribution of 5 
pence per tonne of material transported from the site to enable regular inspections 
and maintenance of the roads or an annual condition survey of the roads, and 
subsequent agreement of any payment to be made in respect of any damage. 

However, it is considered that this matter is more appropriately dealt with under 
Section 59 of the Highways Act 1980. This deals with recovering expenses due to 
extraordinary traffic, and give the Highway Authority powers to recover expenses from 
site operators where their traffic is causing damage to the highway due to excessive 
weight or for other “extraordinary” reasons.

Cultural Heritage

The Environmental Statement has concluded that there are no known heritage assets 
within the site and there is low potential for the presence of archaeological remains 
within the site, although they cannot be wholly ruled out. Therefore, an archaeological 
watching brief is proposed during soil stripping operations which would allow 
preservation by record of any remains that may be encountered. This is acceptable to 
GGAT.

Other

In respect of the new pathway to be created, the Council’s Rights of Way Officer has 
commented that it should be ensured in creating this pathway that it does not allow or 
encourage unauthorised users on to the existing Public Right of Way. It is considered 
this matter could be addressed through a condition on any grant of planning 
permission. 

In respect of the diversion of the water main proposed, Dwr Cymru Welsh Water have 
confirmed that they are satisfied with the diversion route, but would wish for this to be 
carried out prior to the construction of the screening landform and bund proposed 

Tudalen 38



rather than prior to Phase 2 of the development as suggested by the applicant. The 
applicant has disputed the need for this. Dwr Cymru Welsh Water have stated that:

“With regards to the diversion requirement before the earth bund is constructed, this 
is required beforehand as the earth bund will increase the cover level on our asset and 
restrict access in the event of a required maintenance or reactive works”.

This is understood, but it is considered to be an issue to be agreed between Dwr 
Cymru Welsh Water and the developer, rather than a planning matter. 

In respect of concerns regarding water pipes being damaged due to blasting, Dwr 
Cymru Welsh Water have stated that they have no records of pipes bursting in the 
area due to blasting from the quarry. 

PLANNING OBLIGATIONS

Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act (as amended) enables local 
planning authorities and developers to agree to planning obligations to require 
operations or activities to be carried out on land (in-kind obligations) or require 
payments to be made (financial contributions), to mitigate any unacceptable impacts 
of development proposals.

A planning obligation (under S.106) may only legally constitute a reason for granting 
planning permission if it is:

necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;

directly related to the development; and,

fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.

Planning Policy Wales advises that contributions from developers may be used to 
offset negative consequences of development, to help meet local needs, or to secure 
benefits which will make development more sustainable. Further guidance regarding 
what types of obligations developers may be expected to contribute towards is also 
contained within Policy AW4 of the Local Development Plan and the Council's SPG 
on Planning Obligations, however it is made clear that this is intended to form the basis 
of negotiations between all parties. 

In this case the Section 106 requirements that meet the legislative requirements are 
as follows:

This is a consolidating application for the existing quarry area and the proposed 
extension, and will replace the four existing consents operating the quarry and the 
current conditions set out in the ROMP. It is considered necessary in order to create 
greater clarity in terms of the planning status of the quarry and to define the works 
permitted that the developer be prevented from carrying out any works in accordance 
with the existing consents and ROMP on the implementation of this planning 
permission. This restriction to be secured via a Section 106 Agreement. The applicant 
has indicated their agreement to this. 

Tudalen 39



Public Health, Protection & Community Services have asked for a contribution towards 
the setting up of and future monitoring of air quality levels of particulate matter in the 
local community. A contribution towards the setting up and continued monitoring is 
considered to be necessary and reasonable due to the acknowledged uncertainties in 
future particulate matter levels, the variability of prevailing weather conditions, the 
increased importance of burden reduction and the possible need to gather information 
to address community concerns. A contribution of £1,591 (exclusive of VAT) is 
required towards the set up costs which shall be paid on completion of the Section 
106 Agreement to ensure the monitoring equipment is in situ prior to the development 
commencing. In addition an annual payment up to a maximum of £5,562 (exclusive of 
VAT) index linked is required towards the cost of undertaking the monitoring required 
as a result of the development. These contributions to be secured via a Section 106 
Agreement. The applicant has indicated their agreement to this. 

RECOMMENDATION

Approve, subject to a Section 106 Agreement containing the obligations detailed 
above and to the following conditions:

1. The development hereby permitted shall be commenced before the 
expiration of five years from the date of this permission. The developer shall 
give the Local Planning Authority not less than 14 days prior written notice of 
the ‘date of commencement of development’. This shall be taken as the date 
of commencement for monitoring purposes.

Reason:  Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended)

2. The extraction and processing  of minerals from the site shall cease by 31st 
December 2047, restoration shall be completed by 31st December 2049 and 
all residual stocks, fixed plant and buildings to which this permission relates 
shall be removed by 31st December 2049.  

For a period of 5 years from the date of completion of restoration the site 
shall be managed in accordance with the approved aftercare scheme 
submitted under the provisions of Condition 52 below.

The planning permission shall expire following the complete restoration and 
aftercare of the site in accordance with the approved restoration and 
aftercare schemes submitted under the provisions of Conditions 50 and 52 
respectively.

Reason: the minerals development permitted is temporary in nature. 

3. The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the 
following approved plans and documents, unless otherwise stipulated by 
conditions: 

 Planning Application Statement (May 2015)
 CYH/E1 – Application Site Plan – Aerial
 CYH/E2 – Application Site Plan

Tudalen 40



 CYH/E3 – Block Phasing
 CYH/E4/B – Initial Works
 CYH/E5/B – Cross Section - Screening Landform
 CYH/E6/B – Countryside/Amenity Enhancement
 CYH/E7 – Current Situation
 CYH/E8/B – Quarry Phase 1
 CYH/E9/B – Quarry Phase 2
 CYH/E10/B – Quarry Phase 3
 CYH/E11/B – Cross Sections – Quarry Phases
 CYH/E12 – Quarry Restoration Concept
 CYH/E13 – Cross Sections – Quarry Bench Treatments
 CYH/E14 – Concept Restoration – Aerial

Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 71ZA of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended)

4. A copy of this permission and the approved plans showing the method and 
direction of working and restoration shall be displayed in the operator’s site 
office at all times during the life of the site. Any subsequent approved 
amendments shall also be displayed.

Reason: To ensure the operator and site contractors are aware of the working 
programme and the conditions attached to carrying out the development.

5. The operator shall submit detailed survey plans of the site, including levels 
to Ordnance Datum, every 5 years from the date of commencement until 
completion of restoration of the site.

Reason: to enable the Local Planning Authority to monitor the achievement 
of the quarry profiles in each phase of the development

6. Prior to the commencement of mineral extraction within Phase 1 of the 
extension area as indicated on Plan CYH/E3, the construction of the screen 
bunds B1 and B2 and the erection of the palisade security fence at the 
locations shown on CYH/E4B shall be completed in accordance with the 
approved plans 

Reason: To protect the amenities of neighbouring residential properties in 
accordance with Policy AW10 of the Rhondda Cynon Taf Local Development 
Plan.

7. Prior to the commencement of mineral extraction within Phase 1 of the 
extension area as indicated on Plan CYH/E3, a detailed scheme of seeding 
and woodland planting of the Northern Screening Landform and preparation 
of the Western Screen Bund to promote natural regeneration shall be 
submitted for the written approval of the Local Planning Authority. The 
scheme shall include details of;

(i) Purpose, aim and objectives of the scheme;

Tudalen 41



(ii) A statement of the plans ecological potential and any ecological 
constraints;

(iii) Details of the landscaping schemes, including;

a) species composition,

b) source of material (all native planting to be of certified British provenance), 

c) techniques and methods of vegetation establishment (including natural 
regeneration) 

d) method statements for site preparation and establishment of target habitat 
features; 

e) extent and location of proposed works;

f) aftercare and long term management;

g) personnel responsible for the work;

h) timing of the works;

i) monitoring;

The scheme shall be implemented as approved.

Reason: To protect the amenities of neighbouring residential properties in 
accordance with Policy AW10 of the Rhondda Cynon Taf Local Development 
Plan.

8. Except in emergencies, to maintain safe quarry working (which shall be 
notified to the Local Planning Authority as soon as practicable), or unless 
the Local Planning Authority has otherwise agreed beforehand in writing 
(including email): 

a) Quarrying operations shall only be carried out between the hours of:

0700 hours and 1900 hours Monday to Friday; and 

0700 hours and 1600 hours Saturdays; and 

not at any time on Sundays or Statutory Public Holidays.

For the purposes of this permission “ quarrying operations “ shall 
mean the stripping of overburden, the development of the quarry 
faces ( including drilling ), the loading and transportation of stone to 
the primary crusher and the operation of the primary crusher or any 
replacement thereof . 

b) No operations for the formation of the Northern Screening Landform,   
the Western Screen Bund or the formation and subsequent removal 

Tudalen 42



of material from designated soil storage areas shall be carried out at 
the site except between the following times:-

08.00 to 17.00 hours Mondays to Fridays.

09.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturdays.

Reason: To protect the amenities of local residents in accordance with 
Policies CS10 and AW10 of the Rhondda Cynon Taf Local Development 
Plan.

9. No extraction of minerals shall take place below 100m A.O.D. other than 
those works necessary for the construction of the quarry sump.

Reason: the impact of the proposed development on the natural 
environment has only been assessed to a depth of 100m AOD.

10. Except in emergencies, or unless the Local Planning Authority has 
otherwise agreed beforehand in writing, all HGV’s and commercial vehicles 
must enter and leave the site via the access located to the south of Rogart 
Terrace 

Reason: in the interests of highway safety

11. No loaded HGV’s shall leave the site un-sheeted except those only carrying 
stone in excess of 75mm.

Reason: in the interests of highway safety

12. Within 3 months of the date of this permission the developer shall submit for 
the approval of the Local Planning Authority a scheme indicating the facilities 
and/or methods to be put in place to ensure deleterious material is not carried 
onto any part of the public highway, including provision for revision in the 
event of the scheme being ineffective and any remedial measures to be put 
in place to clear the highway of any such material. The scheme shall be 
implemented as approved and utilised during the period of operation of the 
quarry. 

Reason: in the interests of highway safety

13. Following the completion of the construction of the Northern Screening 
Landform no quarry plant and machinery, other than those required for 
planting and maintenance, shall travel along the strip of land to the north of 
the Landform.

Reason: To protect the amenities of local residents in accordance with 
Policies CS10 and AW10 of the Rhondda Cynon Taf Local Development 
Plan.

14. Prior to the construction of the permissive path between Orchard Drive and 
Darren Ddu Road shown on Plan CYH/E6, details of the construction, 
including access on to the existing Public Right of Way along Darren Du Road 

Tudalen 43



shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

Reason: To ensure the pathway is suitable for use and does not allow 
inappropriate access on to the existing Public Right of Way, in accordance 
with Policy AW5 of the Rhondda Cynon Taf Local Development Plan. 

15. The controls set out in Dust Management and Monitoring Plan dated 16 
August 2017 shall be implemented from the date of commencement of the 
development and shall be complied with at all times until the expiry of the 
permission. The first formal review set out in section 5.2 of the Plan will be 
due 2 years from the date of commencement of the development.

Reason: To protect the amenities and health of local residents in accordance 
with Policies CS10 and AW10 of the Rhondda Cynon Taf Local Development 
Plan.

16. No mobile crushing or screening equipment shall be operated within 200 
metres of the boundary of the curtilage of any residential properties or within 
200 metres of the boundary of the playing fields at Cefn Primary School 
without the prior express permission of the Local Planning Authority unless 
the equipment is located on land below 170m AOD.

Reason: To protect the amenities of neighbouring residential properties in 
accordance with Policy AW10 of the Rhondda Cynon Taf Local Development 
Plan.

17. The operator of the quarry shall maintain and operate an automatic weather 
monitoring station at the primary crusher, in a manner to ensure the accurate 
measurement of atmospheric temperature, wind direction, wind speed and 
precipitation. All data shall be recoded in an accessible format and retained 
by the operator for at least two years and made available for examination by 
any authorised officer as determined by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure informed management of the operations at the site to 
ensure that dust emitted is not a source of nuisance so as to protect the 
amenities of local residents in accordance with Policies CS10 and AW10 of 
the Rhondda Cynon Taf Local Development Plan.

18. Unless the Local Planning Authority has otherwise agreed beforehand in 
writing ( including e-mail ) drilling operations shall be only be carried out  
between the hours of 10.00 and 16.00 on Monday to Friday, and not at any 
time on Saturdays or Sundays or Statutory Public Holidays within the 
following areas:

(a) above 180 metres A.O.D. in the existing quarry (shaded pink on Plan 
CYH/E7);

Tudalen 44



(b) above 170 metres A.O.D. for the western extension approved by this 
planning permission (shaded green on Plan CYH/E7);

Reason: To protect the amenities of local residents in accordance with 
Policies CS10 and AW10 of the Rhondda Cynon Taf Local Development 
Plan.

19. In any part of the quarry below the levels specified in condition 18 above, 
drilling operations shall only be carried out between the hours of 07.00 and 
18.00 Monday to Friday, and not at any time on Saturdays or Statutory 
Public Holidays unless the Local Planning Authority has agreed beforehand 
in writing (including e-mail ).  

Reason: To protect the amenities of local residents in accordance with 
Policies CS10 and AW10 of the Rhondda Cynon Taf Local Development 
Plan.

20. Except in the case of emergency to maintain safe quarry working, no blasting 
shall take place at the site except between 10.00 a.m. – 16.00 p.m. Monday 
to Friday inclusive and there shall be no blasting on Saturdays, Sundays and 
Public Holidays.   

For the purpose of this Condition 20, "emergency" means any circumstances 
in which the operator has a reasonable cause for apprehending injury to 
persons or serious damage to property.

Reason: To protect the amenities of local residents in accordance with 
Policies CS10 and AW10 of the Rhondda Cynon Taf Local Development 
Plan.

21. Blasting shall be undertaken in such a manner to ensure that ground vibration 
at any vibration sensitive building, measured as a maximum of three mutually 
perpendicular directions taken at the ground surface, does not exceed a peak 
particle velocity (ppv) of 6mms per second in 95% of all blasts measured over 
any continuous six month period, and no single blast shall exceed a ppv of 
10mms per second.  The measurement is to be taken at or near the 
foundations of any vibration sensitive building in the vicinity of the quarry 
existing at the date of this permission.

Reason: To limit ground vibration from blasting operations so as to protect 
the amenities of local residents and the structure of buildings in accordance 
with Policies CS10 and AW10 of the Rhondda Cynon Taf Local Development 
Plan.

22. Blasting shall be undertaken in such a manner to ensure that ground vibration 
at the site of any Dwr Cymru Welsh Water apparatus, measured as a 
maximum of three mutually perpendicular directions taken at the ground 
surface, does not exceed a peak particle velocity (ppv) of 50 mms per second 

Tudalen 45



for any blast.  The measurement is to be taken at the closest point of the blast 
to any DCWW apparatus. 

Reason: To limit ground vibration from blasting operations so as to protect 
the structure of DCWW apparatus in accordance with Policies CS10 and 
AW10 of the Rhondda Cynon Taf Local Development Plan.

23. No secondary blasting shall be carried out on the site 

Reason: To protect the amenities of local residents in accordance with 
Policies CS10 and AW10 of the Rhondda Cynon Taf Local Development 
Plan.

24. All individual blasts shall be designed, managed and implemented to 
minimise the extent of air overpressure resulting from blasts. If air 
overpressure exceeds 120dB at any nearby sensitive residential property 
(not owned by the applicant) the Local Planning Authority shall be informed 
within 7 days and the design, management and implementation of the blasts 
must be reviewed prior to any further blasting being undertaken at the site, 
with all future blasting being undertaken in accordance with the findings of 
the review. 

Reason: To limit air overpressure from blasting operations so as to protect 
the amenities of local residents and the structure of buildings in accordance 
with Policies CS10 and AW10 of the Rhondda Cynon Taf Local Development 
Plan.

25. Each individual blast shall be monitored in accordance with the Blast 
Monitoring Scheme submitted on 30 July 2018. All monitoring shall be 
undertaken in accordance with the terms of the approved scheme for the 
duration of quarrying operations at the site. In addition:

(a) Blasting times shall be clearly advertised at the Quarry;

(b) A warning, audible at the site boundary, shall be sounded prior to any 
blasting operations taking place, and shall be sounded again immediately 
after blasting has finished. 

Reason: To ensure that the impact of blasts on residents is minimised, and 
to protect the amenities of local residents in accordance with Policies CS10 
and AW10 of the Rhondda Cynon Taf Local Development Plan.

26. Between the hours of 07:00 and 19:00 the free field Equivalent Continuous 
Noise Level LAeq (1 hour) resulting from operations within the site shall not 
exceed the relevant noise limit specified in Table 1 below at each selected noise 
sensitive property.  Measurements taken to verify compliance shall have regard 
to the effects of extraneous noise and shall be corrected for any such effects. 
Measurements and assessments shall be made in accordance with BS4142.

Table 1

Tudalen 46



Receptor Criteria

Cefn Heulog 42 dB LAeq

Cefn Primary School 45 dB LAeq

No 36 Conway Close 46 dB LAeq

No 3 Pen y Bryn 47 dB LAeq

Flat above shop Garth Avenue 54 dB LAeq

No 1 Rogart Terrace 55 dB LAeq

Reason: To ensure that the noise emitted is not a source of nuisance, and 
to protect the amenities of local residents in accordance with Policies CS10 
and AW10 of the Rhondda Cynon Taf Local Development Plan.

27. Between the hours of 19:00 and 07:00 the free field Equivalent Continuous 
Noise Level LAeq (1 hour) due to operations in the site shall not exceed 42 
dB LAeq at each selected noise sensitive property specified in Table 1 set 
out in condition 29 above. 

Reason: To ensure that the noise emitted is not a source of nuisance, and to 
protect the amenities of local residents in accordance with Policies CS10 and 
AW10 of the Rhondda Cynon Taf Local Development Plan.

28. Noise levels attributable to operations of a temporary nature within or on the 
periphery of the site such as the formation, removal or alteration of spoil tips, 
screening landforms and storage embankments, measured at any noise 
sensitive property specified in Table 1 in condition 26 above, shall not exceed 
a level of 67dB LAeq, 1hour (free field) These noise limits shall only apply for 
a maximum of 8 weeks in any calendar year.

Reason: To ensure that the noise emitted is not a source of nuisance, and to 
protect the amenities of local residents in accordance with Policies CS10 and 
AW10 of the Rhondda Cynon Taf Local Development Plan.

29. Prior to the commencement of any soil stripping operations within the area 
shaded green on Plan CYH/E7 a revised Noise Management scheme for the 
site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The operation of the approved scheme shall commence on the 
commencement of soil stripping within the area shaded green and thereafter 
all site operations within the quarry site shall be monitored in accordance with 
the approved scheme.  The submitted scheme shall:

Tudalen 47



(a) specify that monitoring shall be undertaken biannually for the following 
two years at the properties listed in Table 1 above, and thereafter the 
frequency of monitoring shall be agreed between the operator and the Local 
Planning Authority;

(b) include the provision of measures to reduce noise levels from site 
operations and specify the exact locations and methodology for monitoring; 
and

(c) provide for the results of monitoring to be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority within 1 month of the monitoring being undertaken, together with 
confirmation of action required and/or undertaken to remedy any breach of 
the noise limits set out in Table 1. 

(d) specify the steps to be taken on receipt of a complaint of noise nuisance, 
including the commencement or continuation of the noise monitoring 
programme to assist in the investigation of any relevant complaint.

Reason: To ensure that the noise emitted is not a source of nuisance, and to 
protect the amenities of local residents in accordance with Policies CS10 and 
AW10 of the Rhondda Cynon Taf Local Development Plan.

30. The best practicable means shall be used to minimise noise from reversing 
warning devices which are fitted to mobile plant and vehicles on the site. 
This may include fitting broadband directional alarms to vehicles.

Reason: To ensure that the noise emitted is not a source of nuisance, and 
to protect the amenities of local residents in accordance with Policies CS10 
and AW10 of the Rhondda Cynon Taf Local Development Plan.

31. Any facilities for the storage of oils, fuels or chemicals on the site shall be 
sited in impervious bases and surrounded by impervious bund walls.  The 
volume of the bunded compound shall be at least equivalent to the capacity 
of the tank plus 10%.  If there is multiple tankage, the compound shall be at 
least equivalent to the capacity of the largest tank, or the combined capacity 
of inter-connective tanks, plus 10%.  All filling points, vents, gauges and site 
glasses shall be located within the bund.  The drainage system of the bund 
shall be sealed with no discharge to any water course, land or underground 
strata.  Associated pipe work shall be located above ground and protected 
from accidental damage. All filling points and tank overflow pipe outlets shall 
be detailed to discharge downwards into the bund.

Reason: To prevent pollution of nearby watercourses and drainage systems 
in accordance with Policy AW10 of the Rhondda Cynon Taf Local 
Development Plan.

32. Throughout the period of working, restoration and aftercare, the operator 
shall protect and support any ditch, stream, water course or culvert passing 
through the site and neither impair the flow nor render less effective drainage 
onto and from adjoining land.  Satisfactory provision will be made to deal with 
any surface water run-off from the site and, in particular, no run-off water from 

Tudalen 48



the site shall be permitted to flow down the quarry access road and onto the 
Berw Road.

Reason: To prevent pollution of nearby watercourses and drainage systems 
in accordance with Policy AW10 of the Rhondda Cynon Taf Local 
Development Plan.

33. Any settlement ponds at the site shall be kept clear of mud and silt as 
necessary so as to keep them in good order, and the discharge of waste, oil 
or other pollutant to any settlement pond, ditch, steam, watercourse or other 
culvert is not permitted.

Reason: To prevent pollution of nearby watercourses and drainage systems 
in accordance with Policy AW10 of the Rhondda Cynon Taf Local 
Development Plan.

34. No floodlighting other than that in existence at the date of this consent, shall 
be used on the site without the prior written approval of the Local Planning 
Authority. Any request for prior written approval must identify the impact of 
the additional lighting on bats and the amenity of nearby residents potentially 
affected.

Reason: To prevent any unacceptable light pollution and to protect the 
amenities of local residents in accordance with Policies AW8, CS10 and 
AW10 of the Rhondda Cynon Taf Local Development Plan.

35. No development shall take place within the area shaded green on Plan 
CYH/E7 until the applicant, or their agents or successors in title, has secured 
the implementation of a programme of archaeological work in accordance 
with a written scheme of investigation which has been submitted by the 
applicant and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The 
programme of work shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details.  The programme should include the requirement that an 
archaeological watching brief would be conducted during ground disturbing 
activities; and also specify suitable contingency arrangements to ensure that 
sufficient time and resources are made available to fully investigate and 
record any archaeological features that are discovered. The results of all the 
mitigation and fieldwork and any post-excavation work shall be contained in 
a report to be submitted for the approval of the LPA.

Reason: In order that the archaeological operations are undertaken to an 
acceptable standard and that legitimate archaeological interest in the site is 
satisfied in accordance with Policy AW7 of the Rhondda Cynon Taf Local 
Development Plan.

36. Within 6 months of the date of this permission a Species Protection, Habitat 
Management and Tree & Woodland Protection/Management Plan for all the 
land in the ownership of the developer within and surrounding the quarry, 

Tudalen 49



shall be submitted for the written approval of the local planning authority. The 
plan shall include:

a) An appropriate scale plan showing 'Species, Habitat and 
Tree/Woodland Protection Zones' where development activities are 
restricted and / or where protective measures will be installed or 
implemented;

b) Details of any protective measures (both physical measures and 
sensitive working practices) necessary to avoid impacts on species, 
habitats and trees during development;

c) Details of specific species and habitat mitigation measures;
d) A plan showing the location of areas of habitat management, 

mitigation and monitoring;
e) Details of a habitat management, creation and 

monitoring programme; 

(f) Details of site management, and habitat creation. 

(g) Details of arrangements for the review and updating of the Plan;

(h) Details of habitat monitoring; 

(i) That no cultivation, drainage, fertiliser or herbicide application will 
take place to habitat management areas without prior agreement of the 
Local Planning Authority;

(j) Invasive plant treatment and eradication;

(k) Preparation of a work schedule 

The works shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details 

Reason: To ensure the protection and management of wildlife and habitats, 
in accordance with Policy AW8 of the Rhondda Cynon Taf Local 
Development Plan. 

37. The existing trees, bushes and hedgerows within the control of the developer 
(other than those shown as being removed on any of the approved plans) 
shall be retained and shall not be felled, lopped, topped or removed in areas 
outside of the area of mineral working without the prior written consent of the 
Local Planning Authority. Any such vegetation removed without consent, 
dying, being severely damaged or becoming seriously diseased shall be 
replaced with trees or bushes of such size and species as may be specified 
by the Local Planning Authority, in the planting season immediately following 
any such occurrences.

Reason: In the interests of amenity in accordance with Policies AW5 and 
AW6 of the Rhondda Cynon Taf Local Development Plan 

38. Trees, shrubs and hedges planted in accordance with the scheme approved 
under condition 37 above shall be maintained and any plants which within 
five years of planting die, are removed or become seriously damaged or 

Tudalen 50



diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar 
size and species.

Reason: In the interests of amenity in accordance with Policies AW5 and 
AW6 of the Rhondda Cynon Taf Local Development Plan 

39. All disturbed areas of the site and all topsoil, soil making material and 
overburden mounds shall be kept free from agricultural weeds until the 
completion of aftercare.

Reason: To prevent a build-up of harmful weed seeds in soils that are being 
or will be used for restoration in accordance with Policy AW10 of the Rhondda 
Cynon Taf Local Development Plan.

40. All topsoil and subsoil shall be stripped from operational areas prior to those 
areas being brought into use and shall be used either directly for restoration 
of completed areas and/or permanently retained on site for use in restoration.

Reason: To ensure the appropriate use of soil resources on the site 

41. No plant or vehicles shall cross any area of un-stripped topsoil except where 
such trafficking is essential and unavoidable for purposes of undertaking 
permitted operations. Essential trafficking routes shall be marked in such a 
manner as to give effect to this condition. No part of the site shall be 
excavated or traversed or used for a road or for the stationing of plant or 
buildings, or storage of subsoil or overburden or waste or mineral deposits, 
until all available topsoil and subsoil has been stripped separately from that 
part. The exception is that topsoils may be stored on like topsoils and subsoils 
may be stored on like subsoils.

Reason: To prevent the unnecessary compaction of soils and damage to soil 
structure.

42. The Local Planning Authority shall be notified in writing at least 14 days 
before each of the following stages:

(a) Before each phase of soil stripping is due to commence;

(b) Where areas have been prepared ready for soil replacement;

(c) On completion of soil replacement 

Reason: To ensure that the Local Planning Authority is given opportunity to 
check that soil operations do not occur under unsuitable conditions and to 
provide sufficient notice for site inspection.

43. Soil stripping shall not commence in any phase until any standing crop or 
vegetation has been cut and removed.

Reason: To avoid incorporation of concentrations of decaying vegetation in 
soil.

Tudalen 51



44. Topsoil, subsoil and soil making material shall only be stripped when they are 
in a dry and friable condition, and no movement of soils shall occur:

(a) During the months October to March (inclusive), unless otherwise agreed 
in writing with the Local Planning Authority; or

(b) There are pools of water on the soil surface.

Reason: To prevent the unnecessary damage to soil structure

45. All topsoil, subsoil not immediately placed for restoration purposes shall be 
stored in separate mounds which shall:

(a) Not exceed 3 metres in height in the case of topsoil, or exceed 5 metres 
in height in the case of subsoil;

(b) Be constructed with only the minimum amount of soil compaction to 
ensure stability and shaped so as to avoid collection of water in surface 
undulations;

(c) Not be subsequently moved or added to until required for restoration, 
unless the Local Planning Authority has otherwise agreed beforehand in 
writing;

(d) Have a minimum 3.0 metre stand-off, undisturbed around each storage 
mound;

(e) Comprise topsoils on like texture topsoils and subsoils on like texture 
subsoils;

(f) In the case of continuous mounds, ensure that dissimilar soils are 
separated by a third material, which shall have previously been agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To prevent the loss of soil and minimise damage to soil structure 
during storage.

46. Soils will be stored at the locations shown on Plans CYH/E8/B, CYH/E9/B 
and CYH/E10/B or at such alternative locations as may be previously agreed 
in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason: To ensure the availability of the adequate material for the 
landscaping and restoration of the site in accordance with Policy CS10 of the 
Rhondda Cynon Taf Local Development Plan.

47. Prior to soil stripping and formation of soil storage mounds, a scheme for 
grass seeding and management of all storage mounds that will remain in situ 
for more than three months shall be submitted for the written approval of the 
Local Planning Authority. Seeding and management of the storage mounds 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To protect mounds from soil erosion, prevent build-up of weeds in 
the soil and remove vegetation prior to soil replacement.

Tudalen 52



48. Within three months of completion of soil handling operations in any calendar 
year, the Local Planning Authority shall be supplied with a plan showing:

(a) The area stripped of topsoil and/or subsoil;

(b) The location of each soil storage mound; and

(c) The quantity and nature of material therein.

Reason: To facilitate soil stock taking and monitoring of soil resources

49. Within 6 months of the date of this permission, an Interim Restoration 
Scheme shall be submitted for the written approval of the Local Planning 
Authority. The Interim Restoration Scheme shall cover the restoration of final 
benches located outside active quarrying areas and other land within the 
quarry boundary not required for operational purposes. The Scheme shall be 
implemented as approved.

Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the local area in accordance with 
Policy CS10 the Rhondda Cynon Taf Local Development Plan. 

50. Not later than 31 December 2047 or the expiry of 6 months following the 
permanent cessation of the winning and working of minerals and the 
depositing of mineral waste, whichever is the sooner, a detailed final 
restoration scheme, including drawings to illustrate the proposals for the final 
restoration of the quarry shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority in writing.  The final restoration scheme shall be based 
upon the restoration concept plan CYH/E12 and include, inter alia the 
following matters:

a) the nature of the intended after use of the site;
b) the location, depth and treatment of any dust/fine aggregate on the 

site;
c) the ripping of the quarry floor (other than where comprised of bedrock) 

and the re-spreading over the floor of the excavated area of any 
overburden, subsoil and topsoil previously stripped from the site, in 
that order;

d) the ripping of any compacted layers of final cover to ensure adequate 
drainage and aeration; such ripping should normally take place before 
placing of the topsoil;

e) the machinery to be used in soil re-spreading operations;
f) the final proposed levels of the site on a contour plan at 5m intervals 

and the gradient of the restored slopes which shall be graded to 
prevent ponding of, or erosion by surface water and to conform with 
the surrounding land;

g) the drainage of the restored land including the formation of suitably 
graded contours to promote natural drainage and the installation of 
artificial drainage where necessary,

Tudalen 53



h) the position and design of any ditches and watercourses where all 
such features shall be designed to achieve maximum ecological 
diversification;

i) the reinstatement of the plant site and access roads by clearing plant, 
buildings, machinery and concrete or brickwork, and other 
obstructions, replacing of subsoil and then topsoil previously stripped 
form the site; 

j) details of the spreading of soils previously stripped and stored on the 
site including depths and placement areas;

k) the method of soil replacement and soil handling;
l) position and erection of boundary fencing;

The position of any roadways, footpaths and bridleways to be provided linked 
with existing Public Rights of Way, including the crossing and surfacing of 
such routes.

The restoration works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
restoration scheme and shall be fully implemented within two years of the 
date of approval of the scheme or by 31st December 2049, whichever is the 
sooner. 

Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the local area in accordance with 
Policy CS10 the Rhondda Cynon Taf Local Development Plan.

51. Prior to the commencement of the Final Restoration Scheme, the operator 
shall submit a scheme to deal with any potential contamination on the site. 
The scheme shall include such of the following steps as the Local Planning 
Authority shall reasonably deem necessary:

a) A desk-top study and walk-over survey shall be carried out by a 
competent person to identify and evaluate all potential sources and 
impacts of contamination relevant to the site.  A report of the desk-
top study and walk over survey shall be submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority without delay upon completion. 

b) Unless the report supplied under i) above satisfies the Local 
Planning Authority that it is not required, a site investigation shall be 
carried out by a competent person to fully and effectively 
characterise the nature and extent of any contamination and its 
implications.

c) A scheme containing a written method statement for the remediation 
of any contamination revealed by the site investigation in ii) above 
shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority prior to 
commencement and all requirements shall be implemented and 
completed by a competent person in accordance with a timescale to 
be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

d) A suitable validation report of any remedial works carried out under 
iii) above shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority.

Tudalen 54



If during restoration works any contamination should be encountered which 
was not previously identified and is derived from a different source and/or of 
a different type to those included in any remediation proposals above then 
revised remediation proposals shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority, and thereafter implemented in accordance 
with an agreed timescale with the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of health and safety and environmental amenity in 
accordance with Policy AW10 the Rhondda Cynon Taf Local Development 
Plan.

52. Not later than 30 December 2049 or the expiry of 24 months following the 
permanent cessation of the winning and working of minerals and the 
depositing of mineral waste, whichever is the sooner, an aftercare scheme, 
for amenity after use that promotes the use of the site for nature conservation 
shall be submitted for the approval of the Local Planning Authority. The 
aftercare scheme shall include the following elements:  

a) A five year period of aftercare following restoration: 
b) The inclusion of all areas affected by the quarrying activities, and 

areas outside the extraction area that have been used to store soil or 
overburden and areas subject to trafficking by mobile plant and 
equipment;

c) The steps to be taken and the period during which they are to be 
undertaken and who shall be responsible for taking those steps;

d) The timing and pattern of vegetation establishment (including grass 
seeding of restored areas with a suitable herbage mixture and 
application rates to achieve species rich grassland and heath land 
restoration, the distribution of native tree and shrub planting including 
stock types, sizes, spacing, method and position of planting).  

e) Cultivation practices for the preparation of soils;
f) Fertilising and lime application based on soil analysis, weed control; 
g) Land management techniques;
h) The provision of boundary treatment; 
i) Entry onto the site shall be granted to officials of the Welsh 

Government at all times during soil stripping or replacement 
operations, restoration and aftercare of the site;

j) An aftercare habitat management plan which shall include;
k) The details of the provision of areas to be restored to nature 

conservation and their application to local biodiversity objectives (to 
include nesting sites for peregrine falcon and raven, roosting and 
hibernation areas for bats, native woodland restoration, natural 
species –rich grassland and heath land restoration);

l) Description and evaluation of features to be managed;
m) Ecological trends and constraints that may influence management;
n) Aims and objectives of management;
o) Appropriate management options for achieving aims and objectives;
p) Prescription for management actions;

Tudalen 55



q) Work Schedule;
r) Personnel responsible for implementation of plan;
s) Monitoring and remedial/contingency measures triggered by 

monitoring.

Aftercare operations shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
aftercare scheme unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority 

Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the local area in accordance with 
Policy CS10 the Rhondda Cynon Taf Local Development Plan.

53. Before 31st March of every year during the aftercare period, the site operator 
shall arrange a formal site meeting to review the aftercare operations which 
have taken place on the site during the previous year, and also the 
programme of management for the following year.  The parties invited to this 
meeting shall include the site operator, the owners of the land (if not the 
operator), any other relevant occupiers, the Local Planning Authority and 
such relevant advisors and/or representatives of the Local Planning Authority 
as it shall nominate.  At least one month before the date of each annual 
review meeting, the site operator shall provide a written report to the Local 
Planning Authority.  The report shall contain details of the management and 
other operations carried out on the site in the previous year and those which 
are planned for the ensuing year. 

Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the local area in accordance with 
Policy CS10 the Rhondda Cynon Taf Local Development Plan.

54. Within 6 months of the date of this consent or prior to the commencement of 
preparatory construction/excavation works in relation to the eastern 
landform, whichever is the sooner, a strategy shall be submitted for 
communication and engagement with the local community. This shall include 
measures for the setting up of a Community Liaison Group. The strategy shall 
be implemented in accordance with the approved details 

Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the local residents in accordance 
with Policy AW5 the Rhondda Cynon Taf Local Development Plan. 

Tudalen 56



PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

6 FEBRUARY 2020

INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS, PERTAINING TO ACTION TAKEN

UNDER DELEGATED POWERS

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR PROSPERITY AND DEVELOPMENT  

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

To inform Members of the following, for the period 18/01/2020 and 
24/01/2020.

Planning and Enforcement Appeals Decisions Received.
Delegated Decisions Approvals and Refusals with reasons.
Overview of Enforcement Cases.
Enforcement Delegated Decisions.

2. RECOMMENDATION

That Members note the information.

Tudalen 57

Agendwm 6



LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

as amended by

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

6 FEBRUARY 2020

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR PROSPERITY AND DEVELOPMENT  

REPORT OFFICER TO CONTACT

INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS,                      Mr. J. Bailey
PERTAINING TO ACTION TAKEN                    (Tel: 01443 281132)
UNDER DELEGATED POWERS

See Relevant Application File

Tudalen 58



RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

18/01/2020 and 24/01/2020
Development Control : Delegated Decisions (Permissions) between:

Report for Development Control Planning Committee

Penrhiwceiber

19/1233/15 21/01/2020

Proposal:
Variation of condition 2 of planning permission 19/1008/15 to amend roof design of cafe building.

Location: LEE GARDENS POOL, CROSS STREET, PENRHIWCEIBER, MOUNTAIN ASH, CF45 3TD

Decision Date:

Abercynon

19/1199/09 23/01/2020

Proposal:
Certificate of lawful development for a proposed rear single storey extension.

Location: 21 FIFE STREET, ABERCYNON, MOUNTAIN ASH, CF45 4TU

Decision Date:

Ynysybwl

19/1229/10 21/01/2020

Proposal:
Demolition of existing stables and outbuilding arrangement and construction of new stable block, haybarns 
and menage.

Location: GLYNDERWEN, WINDSOR PLACE, YNYSYBWL, PONTYPRIDD, CF37 3LY

Decision Date:

Ystrad

19/1170/10 21/01/2020

Proposal:
Erection of two new dwellings and associated works, demolition of existing garage and outbuilding, provision 
of new separate access for the new dwellings and erection of replacement garage and access alterations for 

Location: BODRINGALLT VILLA, SANDY BANK ROAD, YSTRAD, PENTRE, CF41 7QF

Decision Date:

Cymmer

19/0674/10 22/01/2020

Proposal:
Commercial development, external works, demolition and part replacement of unit A (amended plans received 
30/10/2019).

Location: CHAFF HOUSE, BROOK STREET, PORTH

Decision Date:

Tudalen 59



RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

18/01/2020 and 24/01/2020
Development Control : Delegated Decisions (Permissions) between:

Report for Development Control Planning Committee

Ynyshir

19/1159/10 20/01/2020

Proposal:
Replacement of existing bin storage area with an improved metrostore bin storage at Springfield.

Location: FOOTPATH 39 TO 10 SPRINGFIELD, YNYSHIR, PORTH, CF39 OLA

Decision Date:

19/1244/10 21/01/2020

Proposal:
Construction of three single domestic garages. (Amended Plans received 16/12/19)

Location: REAR OF 41 - 43 SOUTH STREET, YNYSHIR, PORTH

Decision Date:

19/1249/10 22/01/2020

Proposal:
Remove lockup and replace with a larger lockup.

Location: LAND REAR OF 53 SOUTH STREET, YNYSHIR, PORTH, CF39 0EF

Decision Date:

Ferndale

19/1242/10 21/01/2020

Proposal:
Replacement of two-storey side extension, balcony to front elevation of extension, removal of hip to existing 
building and construction of gable.

Location: 20 BAPTIST SQUARE, BLAENLLECHAU, FERNDALE, CF43 4NT

Decision Date:

19/1248/10 23/01/2020

Proposal:
Single storey ground floor half width extension to rear.

Location: 69 TAFF STREET, FERNDALE, CF43 4NG

Decision Date:

Treforest

19/1056/10 24/01/2020

Proposal:
Ground floor rear extension (retrospective)

Location: 76 QUEEN STREET, TREFOREST, PONTYPRIDD, CF37 1RN

Decision Date:

Hawthorn

19/1284/10 23/01/2020

Proposal:
Ground and first floor extension.

Location: 13 HAWTHORN ROAD, RHYDYFELIN, PONTYPRIDD, CF37 5AT

Decision Date:

Ffynon Taf

19/1113/10 20/01/2020

Proposal:
Single storey rear extension and dormer roof extension (amended plans and description received 28/11/2019).

Location: 47 RHIW'R DDAR, TAFFS WELL, CF15 7PA

Decision Date:

Tudalen 60



RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

18/01/2020 and 24/01/2020
Development Control : Delegated Decisions (Permissions) between:

Report for Development Control Planning Committee

Llantwit Fardre

19/1253/10 20/01/2020

Proposal:
Proposed garage conversion.

Location: THE HEATHLANDS, 42 CADWAL COURT, LLANTWIT FARDRE, PONTYPRIDD, CF38 2FA

Decision Date:

Gilfach Goch

19/1051/10 23/01/2020

Proposal:
Construction of 3 dwellings and access road (affecting Public Right of Way ANT 22/1 and 23/1).

Location: LAND ADJACENT TO BAKERSVILLE, FAIR VIEW, GILFACH GOCH, PORTH, CF39 8SG

Decision Date:

Town (Llantrisant)

19/1238/10 20/01/2020

Proposal:
Demolition of part single/part two storey rear extension and construction of a two storey extension.

Location: 81 NEWBRIDGE ROAD, LLANTRISANT, PONTYCLUN, CF72 8EY

Decision Date:

Pontyclun

19/1252/10 23/01/2020

Proposal:
Part two-storey, part first floor side extension & ground floor rear 'wraparound' extension.

Location: 210 YNYSDDU, PONTYCLUN, CF72 9UE

Decision Date:

Llanharan

18/1415/08 20/01/2020

Proposal:
Single storey extension to rear of school to provide 2 new classrooms.  New hammerhead turning area and 
provision of parking bays.  Change the existing hammerhead to a fenced play area.  Provision of a new 

Location: LLANHARAN PRIMARY SCHOOL, LLWYNBRAIN TERRACE, LLANHARAN, PONTYCLUN, CF72 9PW

Decision Date:

Brynna

19/0416/10 20/01/2020

Proposal:
Retention of extraction system for existing commercial kitchen, with additional sales/cafe area use for the 
consumption of food on and off the premises.

Location: UNIT 2, OLD BRYNCAE SERVICE STREET, BRIDGEND ROAD, LLANHARAN, CF72 9RP

Decision Date:

Total Number of Delegated decisions is  19

Tudalen 61



tudalen wag



RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

18/01/2020 and 24/01/2020Development Control : Delegated Decisions - Refusals between:

Report for Development Control Planning Committee

Aberdare West/Llwydcoed

19/0739/10 23/01/2020

Proposal: Proposed new detached rural enterprise dwelling.

Location: TIR MAWR FARM, CWMYNYSMINTON ROAD, LLWYDCOED, ABERDARE, CF44 0DX

Decision Date:

Reason: The proposal would represent unjustified development outside the settlement boundary in an unsustainable 
location, effectively representing a proposal to erect a second agricultural workers dwelling at the site where 
such a need has not been sufficiently proven. The proposed development is therefore contrary to policies 
AW2 and NSA12 of the Rhondda Cynon Taf Local Development Plan and guidance contained in Planning 
Policy Wales: Technical Advice Note 6 - Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities.

Additionally, whilst it is considered that the site is physically large enough to accommodate a dwelling of the 
scale proposed, along with associated access, parking and amenity space, it is considered that any 
development at the application site would be insensitive and harmful to the rural character of the site and 
surrounding Special Landscape Area and the proposal would therefore be contrary to Policies AW5, AW6 
and NSA25 in respect of its potential visual impact.

 1

Tylorstown

19/1269/15 24/01/2020

Proposal: Variation of conditions 3 and 4 of application 54/82/0776 to allow the sale of hot food for takeaway 
purposes and to extend the hours of operation from 09.00am to 10.30pm daily.

Location: 17 EAST ROAD, TYLORSTOWN, FERNDALE, CF43 3HF

Decision Date:

Reason: The use of the premises as a hot food takeaway would be contrary to Policy AW5 of the Rhondda Cynon 
Taf Local Development Plan for the following reason:

The proposed hot food takeaway at this location would give rise to a greater intensity of short-term on-street 
parking along East Road (A4233) in close proximity to the signalised crossing point and affect the safety 
and free flow of traffic to the detriment of highway and pedestrian safety.

 1

Total Number of Delegated decisions is  2

Tudalen 63



tudalen wag



APPEALS RECEIVED 

APPLICATION NO: 19/0995
APPEAL REF: D/19/3242674
APPLICANT: Mr L Perry
DEVELOPMENT: Two storey rear extension. 
LOCATION: 22 TUDOR STREET, RHYDYFELIN, PONTYPRIDD, CF37 

5LB
APPEAL RECEIVED: 06/12/2019
APPEAL START 
DATE:

17/12/2019

APPLICATION NO: 19/1061
APPEAL REF: D/19/3243325
APPLICANT: Ms Judith Hawkins
DEVELOPMENT: Two storey side and single storey rear extension. 
LOCATION: 20 CROWN HILL DRIVE, LLANTWIT FARDRE, 

PONTYPRIDD, CF38 2NE
APPEAL RECEIVED: 16/12/2019
APPEAL START 
DATE:

02/01/2020

APPLICATION NO: 19/0659
APPEAL REF: D/19/3243141
APPLICANT: Mr A Hiett
DEVELOPMENT: Partial retrospective application for the retention of decking 

and steps to rear garden
LOCATION: 17 PINE COURT, TALBOT GREEN, PONTYCLUN, CF72 

8LA
APPEAL RECEIVED: 07/01/2020
APPEAL START 
DATE:

07/01/2020

APPLICATION NO: 19/0952
APPEAL REF: D/20/3244485
APPLICANT: Mr J Hibbert
DEVELOPMENT: Second floor rear extension over existing roof profile and 

rear extension. 
LOCATION: 32 THE AVENUE, PONTYPRIDD, CF37 4DF
APPEAL RECEIVED: 08/01/2020

Tudalen 65



APPEAL START 
DATE:

21/01/2020

APPLICATION NO: 19/0750
APPEAL REF: A/20/3244788
APPLICANT: Mr D Richards
DEVELOPMENT: Change of use from former chapel workshop to 2 x No. self 

contained flats with extension to rear, internal alterations 
and a storage area to lower ground floor (Amended Plans 
received 30/09/2019).

LOCATION: FORMER CHAPEL WORKSHOP ADJACENT TO 23 
NAPIER STREET, MOUNTAIN ASH, ABERDARE, CF45 
3HW

APPEAL RECEIVED: 23/01/2020
APPEAL START 
DATE:

23/01/2020

APPEAL DECISIONS RECEIVED 

APPLICATION NO: 18/1346
APPEAL REF: A/19/3237483
APPLICANT: Davies Homes Ltd
DEVELOPMENT: Proposed 120 unit residential development, with associated 

landscaping and engineering works.
LOCATION: FORMER BLAENGWAWR COMPREHENSIVE SCHOOL, 

CLUB STREET, ABERAMAN, ABERDARE, CF44 6TN
DECIDED: 24/07/2019
DECISION: Refused
APPEAL RECEIVED: 19/09/2019
APPEAL DECIDED: 08/01/2020
APPEAL DECISION: Allowed with Conditions

APPLICATION NO: 19/0718
APPEAL REF: D/19/3237958
APPLICANT: Mr R White
DEVELOPMENT: Two storey extension
LOCATION: 33 BRYN CELYN, LLANHARRY, PONTYCLUN, CF72 9ZG
DECIDED: 12/08/2019
DECISION: Refused
APPEAL RECEIVED: 26/09/2019
APPEAL DECIDED: 09/12/2019

Tudalen 66



APPEAL DECISION: Dismissed

APPLICATION NO: 18/1333
APPEAL REF: A/19/3239634
APPLICANT: Mr Edwards
DEVELOPMENT: Retrospective permission for a detached pigeon loft. 

(Amended Address received 23/04/19)
LOCATION: REAR OF 14 ARFRYN TERRACE, TYLORSTOWN, 

FERNDALE, CF43 3DR
DECIDED: 29/08/2019
DECISION: Refused
APPEAL RECEIVED: 21/10/2019
APPEAL DECIDED: 28/01/2020
APPEAL DECISION: Dismissed

Tudalen 67



tudalen wag



Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council
Development Control Enforcement – Delegated Decisions 
(December 2019)

None.

Tudalen 69



tudalen wag



Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council
Development Control Enforcement – December 2019

Cases

Received 18

Cases resolved   6 (50%)

Complainant acknowledged 75%

Site visit 100%

Case priority       0 (Priority 1)
      9 (Priority 2)
      9 (Priority 3)

Source

Anonymous   3

Councillor   0

Internal/pro-active   3

Public   12

AM/MP   0

Type
Advert 1 Breach of condition 0

Engineering operations 1 Listed Building 0

Change of use 7 Not in accordance 1

Householder 8 Operational development 0

TPO 0 Untidy land 0

Resolution
Remedied 2

No breach 2

Not expedient 0

Planning application submitted 2

Notice served 0

Tudalen 71



tudalen wag


	Agenda
	4 Cofnodion
	5 RHIF Y CAIS: 15/0666
	6 GWYBODAETH I AELODAU SY'N YMWNEUD Â'R CAMAU GWEITHREDU WEDI'U CYMRYD O DAN BWERAU DIRPRWYEDIG
	Atodiad 1
	Atodiad 2
	Atodiad 3
	Atodiad 4
	Atodiad 5


